
 
 

 

Town of Newmarket 
Council Information Package 

Index of Attachments 

Date: February 16, 2024 
Pages 

General Correspondence Items 

1. Oil, Gas and Salt Resources Act regulation changes for special 1 
projects and well security 

Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry 

January 25, 2024 

2. Resolution 2024-009 - AMO Policy Update - Social and Economic 3 
Prosperity Review 

United Counties of Prescott and Russell 

January 31, 2024 

3. Decision of Brantford City Council - January 30, 2024 - Reliable and 4 
Accessible Public Rail Transit - CN Rail 

City of Brantford 

February 2, 2024 

4. Resolution 2023-22 re. Supreme Court of Canada Appeal in 7 
Sudbury v. Ontario (Ministry of Labour) 

Region of Peel 

February 2, 2024 

5. Regional Council Decision - 2024 Ontario Budget Consultation 9 

Regional Municipality of York 

February 5, 2024 



2 

6. York Region Transit: One Fare Program Launching Monday, 20 
February 26, 2024 

Regional Municipality of York 

February 5, 2024 

7. Notice of Adoption - Town of Aurora Official Plan 26 

Town of Aurora 

February 7, 2024 

8. Resolution from the Town of Petrolia - ROMA | OGRA return to 28 
combined conference 

Town of Petrolia 

February 8, 2024 

9. Resolution - Municipality of Wawa - Fire Apparatus Regulation 30 

Municipality of Wawa 

February 9, 2024 

10. Supporting Resolution - Provincial Cemetery Management 32 

Municipality of Wawa 

February 9, 2024 

11. Township of Springwater Supports Greater Sudbury- Amendment 34 
To the OHSA to Clarify the Definition of 'Employer' 

Township of Springwater 

February 9, 2024 

12. Letter of Support - Conservation Officer Reclassification 38 

Township of Lanark Highlands 

February 14, 2024 

13. Support for the Decision of the Ontario Energy Board to End the 40 
Gas 

City of Hamilton 

February 14, 2024 



3 

14. Sarnia City Council Resolution - Carbon Tax 42 

City of Sarnia 

February 15, 2024 

15. City of Richmond Hill Council Resolution: AMO - Provincial- 45 
Municipal Fiscal Service Delivery Review 

City of Richmond Hill 

February 16, 2024 

16. Resolution - Expand the life span of fire apparatus 56 

Township of McMurrich/Monteith 

February 16, 2024 

17. Resolution of Support of Bill C-310 57 

Township of McMurrich/Monteith 

February 16, 2024 

18. Resolution - Expand the life span of fire apparatus 60 

Township of Central Frontenac 

February 16, 2024 

19. Support for the City of Greater Sudbury - Amendment To the OHSA 61 
to Clarify the Definition of 'Employer' 

Township of McMurrich/Monteith 

February 16, 2024 

20. Support of resolution from Township of Conmee re: amendments to 64 
Municipal Act and Municipal Elections Act 

Township of McMurrich/Monteith 

February 16, 2024 

Proclamation, Lighting Requests and Community Flag Raising 

1. International Angelman Syndrome Day 67 

Lighting - February 15, 2024 (Blue) 



4 

2. Rare Disease Day 68 

Lighting - February 29, 2024 (Blue) 

3. March is Easter Seals Month 70 

Proclamation - March 1 - 31, 2024 

4. Amyloidosis Awareness Month 72 

Proclamation - March 1 - 31, 2024 

Lighting - March 15, 2024 (Red) 

5. Epilepsy Awareness Month and Purple Day 73 

Proclamation - March 1 - 31, 2024 

Lighting - Purple Day - March 26, 2024 (Purple) 

Flag Raising - March 20 - 27, 2024 

6. Global Lymphedema Day 74 

Lighting - March 6, 2024 (Teal) 

Information Reports 

None. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

    

   

    

       

    

   

  

   

     

 

   

 

    

   

 

      

  

   

 

 

    

 

  

 
 
 
 

    
 

 
    

  
  

   
    

 

 
 
 
 

     
   

 
      

   
     

   
    

 

1 

Ministry of Natural Resources and 
Forestry 

Resources Planning and Development 
Policy Branch 
Policy Division 
300 Water Street 
Peterborough, ON K9J 3C7 

Ministère des Richesses naturelles et 
des Forêts 

Direction des politiques de planification et 
d'exploitation des ressources 
Division de l’élaboration des politiques 
300, rue Water 
Peterborough (Ontario) K9J 3C7 

January 23, 2024 

Subject: Oil, Gas and Salt Resources Act regulation changes for special projects and 

well security 

Hello, 

Last fall we shared information about proposed regulation changes under the Oil, Gas 

and Salt Resources Act related to: 

• Establishing a framework to allow projects to test or demonstrate new or 

innovative activities in Ontario – called special projects - to pursue authorization 

under the Oil, Gas and Salt Resources Act. 

• Well security caps and exemptions for all wells under this act. 

Today, we are writing to let you know that a decision has been made to proceed with 

these changes. The new regulation for special projects will allow businesses interested 

in pursuing projects to test, assess, pilot or demonstrate carbon storage projects to 

pursue special project designation, and if designated, apply for authorizations for their 

project. While this new regulation applies to both private and Crown lands, initially, 

special projects for carbon storage will only be enabled on private land because further 

legislative changes will be necessary to access Crown lands for carbon storage. 

The changes are being made subject to the following modifications that were made in 

response to feedback received: 

• Municipal source water protection authorities have been included as one of the 

parties to be circulated on applications for special projects. 

• In response to a request from Professional Engineers Ontario (PEO), the 

qualifications of people that may be approved by the ministry to conduct 

examinations of special projects has been expanded to include individuals 

holding a limited licence under the Professional Engineers Act. A limited licence 

is issued by PEO to an individual who, as a result of at least eight years of 

specialized experience, has developed competence in a certain area of 



  

   

  

   

     

    

    

  

   

 

 

      

     

  

    

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

2 

professional engineering, and holders may include individuals with academic 

qualifications other than a university engineering degree. 

• The proposed changes that would have eliminated security exemptions and caps 

where a well licence is transferred were removed to allow more time to assess 

potential implications identified by operators / industry. 

These changes came into effect on January 1, 2024. More details on the decision, the 

feedback received, and the original proposal can be viewed in in the decision notice on 

the Environmental Registry of Ontario: https://ero.ontario.ca/notice/019-7507. 

Carbon storage is new to Ontario, and we want to ensure the activity is undertaken 

responsibly. That is why we are taking a phased approach to developing a framework to 

regulate this activity. 

With Phase 2 – Enabling Demonstration – of our roadmap towards regulating geologic 

carbon storage now complete, the province is now turning to the development of the 

commercial scale framework and is taking a measured approach as to options for 

facilitating access to the underground pore space that is used for carbon storage. 

Ontario aims to have a commercial framework in place by summer 2025, with 

opportunities for public consultation beginning this year. 

If you would like more information or have any questions, please contact Andrew 

Ogilvie, Manager of Resources Development Section, at 705-761-5815 or through 

email: Resources.Development@ontario.ca. 

Sincerely, 

Jennifer Keyes 

Director, Resources Planning and Development Policy Branch 

https://ero.ontario.ca/notice/019-7507
https://www.ontario.ca/page/geologic-carbon-storage
https://www.ontario.ca/page/geologic-carbon-storage
mailto:Resources.Development@ontario.ca


 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

3 

Resolution 
Regular Council Meeting 

Agenda Number: 6.7 

Resolution Number: 2024-009 

Title: Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) Policy Update - Social and
Economic Prosperity Review 

Date: Wednesday, January 24, 2024 

Moved by Mario Zanth 

Seconded by Geneviève Lajoie 

Whereas current provincial-municipal fiscal arrangements are undermining Ontario’s economic 
prosperity and quality of life; 

And whereas nearly a third of municipal spending in Ontario is for services in areas of provincial 
responsibility, and expenditures are outpacing provincial contributions by nearly $4 billion a year; 

And whereas municipal revenues, such as property taxes, do not grow with the economy or inflation; 

And whereas unprecedented population and housing growth will require significant investments in 
municipal infrastructure; 

And whereas municipalities are being asked to take on complex health and social challenges, like 
homelessness, supporting asylum seekers, and addressing the mental health and addictions crises; 

And whereas inflation, rising interest rates, and provincial policy decisions are sharply constraining 
municipal fiscal capacity; 

And whereas property taxpayers, including people on fixed incomes and small businesses, cannot 
afford to subsidize income re-distribution programs for those most in need; 

And whereas the province can, and should, invest more in the prosperity of communities; 

And whereas municipalities and the provincial government have a strong history of collaboration. 

Be it resolved that the Province of Ontario commit to undertaking with the Association of Municipalities 
of Ontario a comprehensive social and economic prosperity review to promote the stability and 
sustainability of municipal finances across Ontario. 

Be it further resolved that a copy of this Resolution be circulated to all the municipalities in Ontario. 

Carried as amended 

Mélissa Cadieux, Clerk 



 

                    
                       

 

 
 

 
  

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
  

 
  

 

      
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
  

 
 

   
 

   
 

 
 

4 

February 2, 2024 

Larry Brock, MP Brant 
108 St. George Street, Suite #3 
Brantford, ON N3R 1V6 

Sent via email: larry.brock@parl.gc.ca 

Will Bouma, MPP 
96 Nelson Street 
Suite 101 
Brantford, ON N3T 2X1 

Sent via email: will.bouma@pc.ola.org 

To whom it may concern: 

Please be advised that Brantford City Council at its meeting held January 30, 2024 adopted the 
following: 

12.1.10 Reliable and Accessible Public Rail Transit - CN Rail 

WHEREAS Canadians deserve access to reliable and efficient passenger rail service; 
and 

WHEREAS in 2021 the Canadian Minister of Transportation announced that the 
federal government would be pursuing opportunities to enhance passenger rail 
services in southwestern Ontario; and 

WHEREAS passengers continue to experience long delays and disruptions to service, 
related to interruptions caused by CN Rail’s freight systems and refusal to give priority 
to passenger rail service; and 

WHEREAS Metrolinx and VIA, in extending or improving commuter train service from 
Aldershot through to Brantford, Woodstock, Ingersoll and London, is reliant on access 
to CN rail lines; and 

WHEREAS CN Rail views increased passenger rail service on its lines as being 
incompatible with its primary business of moving freight and is unlikely to cooperate in 
extending commuter rail service on its lines in southwestern Ontario without direction 
from the federal government; and 

WHEREAS CN Rail has shown a disregard for Municipal property maintenance 
standards in respect to the maintenance of their rail lines and blocks municipalities 
attempts to enforce municipal property standards upon their rail lines; and 

CITY CLERK’S OFFICE City Hall, 58 Dalhousie Street, Brantford, ON N3T 2J2  P.O Box 818, Brantford, ON N3T 5R7               
Phone: (519) 759-4150 Fax: (519) 759-7840     www.brantford.ca 

mailto:larry.brock@parl.gc.ca
mailto:will.bouma@pc.ola.org
www.brantford.ca


 

 

                    
                       

 

 
  

 
   

 
 

    
 

  
 

   
   

  
 

 
    

 
 

  
 

    
  

   
 

 
   

    
 

   
 

 
  

 

 
 

  
 

 
   
   
  

2 
5 

WHEREAS CN Rail’s consistent failure to provide a timely response to development 
applications adjacent to rail right of ways imposes inordinate delays and expense for 
builders and municipalities, further jeopardizing the ability of municipalities to address 
the housing crisis; and 

WHEREAS there is a complete lack of federal regulations providing VIA and Metrolinx 
with any degree of priority or guaranteed access to rail rights of way or directing CN 
Rail to work cooperatively with municipalities; 

AND WHEREAS The City of Brantford CALLS UPON the Federal Government to assist 
other levels of government as they take steps address the need for reliable and 
accessible public rail transit, timely processing of housing developments and the 
prompt and equitable enforcement of municipal property standards; 

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BRANTFORD requests that the 
Federal Government enact the necessary legislative and regulatory provisions: 

i. providing VIA and Metrolinx with priority right of way over freight rail lines, and 
further; 

ii. directing CN Rail to work positively and cooperatively with municipal and provincial 
governments in the processing of land development applications, and the prompt 
and timely enforcement of municipal property standards; 

AND THAT a copy of this resolution be forwarded to all Ontario Municipalities; and to 
the Member of Provincial Parliament Will Bouma, Member of Parliament Larry Brock, 
Federal Minister of Transport Pablo Rodriguez, Provincial Minister of Transportation 
Prabmeet Singh Sarkaria, President and CEO at Metrolinx, President and Chief 
Executive Officer of VIA Rail Canada Inc and President and Chief Executive Officer of 
CN. 

I trust this information is of assistance. 

Yours truly, 

Chris Gauthier 
City Clerk, cgauthier@brantford.ca 

cc Ontario Municipalities 
Federal Minister of Transport, Pablo Rodriguez 
Provincial Minister of Transportation, Prabmeet Singh Sarkaria 
President & CEO, Metrolinx 

CITY CLERK’S OFFICE City Hall, 58 Dalhousie Street, Brantford, ON N3T 2J2  P.O Box 818, Brantford, ON N3T 5R7               
Phone: (519) 759-4150 Fax: (519) 759-7840     www.brantford.ca 

mailto:cgauthier@brantford.ca
www.brantford.ca


 

 

                     
                       

 

   
  
 
 
 
 

 

 

3 
6 

President & CEO, VIA Rail Canada Inc 
President & CEO, CN 

CITY CLERK’S OFFICE City Hall, 58 Dalhousie Street, Brantford, ON N3T 2J2  P.O Box 818, Brantford, ON N3T 5R7               
Phone: (519) 759-4150 Fax: (519) 759-7840     www.brantford.ca 

www.brantford.ca


 

 
 

 

          
 

 
  

 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
      

 
 

 
 

  
  

 
   

    
    

 
   

 
  

   
    

   
    

  

 

 

  
 

 
      

 
   

   

7 

February 2, 2024 Sent via email 

The Honourable Doug Ford 
Premier of Ontario 
Legislative Building, Queen's Park 
Toronto ON M7A 1A1 

Dear Premier Ford: 

Re: Supreme Court of Appeal in Sudbury v. Ontario (Ministry of Labour) 

Please be advised that the following Resolution was approved by Peel Regional 
Council on January 25, 2024: 

Resolution Number 2024-65 

Moved by Councillor Russo 
Seconded by Councillor Parrish 

Whereas in 2015 the City of Greater Sudbury (“Sudbury”) entered into 
a contract with a contractor to complete a project in its downtown core; 

And whereas, the contract provided that the contractor would be the 
constructor for the project as that term is defined in the Occupational 
Health and Safety Act (the “Act”); 

And whereas, an employee of the constructor operating a grader on 
the project struck and killed a pedestrian; 

And whereas, Sudbury was charged with offences under the Act as 
the constructor and the employer; 

And whereas, after being acquitted at trial and on appeal, the Ontario 
Court of Appeal, in a decision issued on April 23, 2021, found Sudbury 
to be liable for contraventions of the Construction Regulations as an 
employer as it employed quality control inspectors to monitor the 
quality of work on the project from time-to-time; 

And whereas, the Supreme Court of Canada, in a decision issued on 
November 10, 2023, was evenly divided 4-4 on the issue resulting in 
the dismissal of Sudbury’s appeal; 

And whereas, the consequence of this decision is that municipalities 
in Ontario, as well as all other owners of property in the province, who 
wish to undertake construction, are  subject to being charged and 
convicted as an employer for offences in relation to project sites for 
which they have no control and have, in accordance with the Act, 
contracted with an entity to assume oversight and authority over the 
work on such site as the  constructor; 

/1 



 

 
 

 

 
  

 
  
  

  

 
 

 
   

  

 

     
  

    
   

   
   

 
  

  
   

   
 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 
  

 
    

    
      

   
  

   
    

  
   

 

8 

And whereas, the potential of an owner being charged as an employer 
as that term is defined in the Act in circumstances where it has 
engaged a constructor disregards and renders meaningless the 
owner-constructor provisions contained in the Act and presents an 
unacceptable level of increased risk and confusion for owners and 
contractors throughout the province; 

And whereas, The Regional Municipality of Peel believes that the 
safety of workers is paramount however the safety of workers on 
construction projects in Ontario is not increased by placing liability on 
parties that do not have control of and are not responsible for the 
conduct of the work on such sites; 

Now therefore be it resolved: 

1. That the Council of The Regional Municipality of Peel requests 
that the province amend the Occupational Health and Safety 
Act to clarify the definition of “employer” to exclude owners 
that have contracted with a constructor for a project; and 

2. That this resolution be provided to the Honourable Doug Ford, 
Premier of Ontario, the Honourable David Piccini, Minister of 
Labour, Immigration, Training and Skills Development, the 
Honourable Paul Calandra, Minister of Municipal Affairs and 
Housing, the Association of Municipalities of Ontario, the 
Federation of Northern Ontario Municipalities, Mayors and 
Regional Chairs of Ontario, the Council of Ontario 
Construction Associations, the Ontario Chamber of Commerce 
and all Greater Toronto Area municipalities. 

Carried 

Thank you, 

Aretha Adams, 
Regional Clerk 

Cc: David Piccini, Minister of Labour, Immigration, Training and Skills Development 
Paul Calandra, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing 
Patricia Caza, Regional Solicitor & Commissioner of Legislative Services, Region of Peel 
Kealy Dedman, Commissioner of Public Works, Region of Peel 
Association of Municipalities of Ontario 
Federation of Northern Ontario Municipalities 
Mayors and Regional Chairs of Ontario - Karen Redman, MARCO Chair 
Council of Ontario Construction Associations 
Ontario Chamber of Commerce - Brent Edwards, Key Account Manager 
All Greater Toronto Area municipalities 

/2 



  

 

 

 
 

          

        

     

            

          

   

9 

2024 Ontario Budget Consultation 

On January 25, 2024 Regional Council made the following decision: 

1. Council endorse this report, including the specific requests outlined in Tables 1 and 2, 

as York Region’s submission to Ontario’s 2024 Budget consultation. 

2. The Regional Clerk send a copy of this report to the Premier of Ontario, Minister of 

Municipal Affairs and Housing, Minister of Finance, local Members of Provincial 

Parliament and local municipalities. 

1 



 

  

 
     

  

   

  

 
 

  

  

 

  

        

    

            

          

    

  

       

             

    

 

             

         

         

     

         

 

         

             

        

    

  

10 

The Regional Municipality of York 
Committee of the Whole 

Finance and Administration 

January 11, 2024 

FOR DECISION 

Report of  the Commissioner of Finance 

2024 Ontario Budget Consultation 

1. Recommendations 

1. Council endorse this report, including the specific requests outlined in Tables 1 and 2, 

as York Region’s submission to Ontario’s 2024 Budget consultation. 

2. The Regional Clerk send a copy of this report to the Premier of Ontario, Minister of 

Municipal Affairs and Housing, Minister of Finance, local Members of Provincial 

Parliament and local municipalities. 

2. Purpose 

This report largely summarizes requests made to the Province during 2023 and seeks Council’s 

endorsement to include them as part of the Ontario 2024 Budget consultation process. The 

deadline to make submissions is January 31, 2024. 

Key Points: 

 As a result of Bill 23, More Homes Built Faster Act, 2022 (Bill 23) changes to the 

Development Charges Act, 1997, (Act) currently in effect, staff estimate development 

charge collections would be reduced by approximately $700 million over the next ten 

years. Reductions would increase once exemptions for affordable ownership and rental 

housing, contemplated by Bill 134, Affordable Homes and Good Jobs Act, 2023, take 

effect 

 Without funding support from the Province, development charges collection reductions, 

would need to be offset by other funding sources, including a potential additional tax levy 

increase of 3.7% in 2024 and an additional user rate increase of 7.9% in 2025, to 

accommodate planned growth, maintain existing assets and avoid service level 

reductions 

1 



   
 

          

          

       

        

     

       

             

        

          

       

        

  

          

     

  

  
  

        

         

          

            

    

  

         

     

            

          

 

  

         

            

        

           

          

             

11 

 York Region municipalities received targets totalling 150,000 new homes by 2031. To 

adequately service this growth and meet 100% of the targets, the Region would need to 

invest an additional $2.6 billion for infrastructure in a fiscally sustainable way, which is 

over and above the near $7.6 billion in growth-related infrastructure already included in 

the 2024, 10-year Capital Plan 

 Despite providing vital housing-related infrastructure, upper-tier municipalities, like York 

Region, are not eligible for the Building Faster Fund and it is unclear if they will be 

eligible for the recently announced Housing-Enabling Water Systems Fund 

 The Region continues to advocate for senior government funding to address critical 

infrastructure needs, meet Provincial mandates and deliver social programs to a growing 

population. The requests contained in this report are consistent with, and supported by, 

previous Council positions through 2023 

 The Province is requested to amend the Act to ensure non-profit housing receiving 

exemptions delivers housing that meets a required level of affordability 

3. Background 

Stakeholders will be able to provide input into the 2024 Ontario Budget until 
January 31, 2024 

On October 19, 2023, the Minister of Finance announced stakeholders would have the 

opportunity to provide input to the Province of Ontario’s 2024 budget process. Pre-budget in-

person consultations are being held across the province from November 2023 to January 2024, 

with the opportunity to provide written submissions by January 31, 2024. The 2024 Budget is 

expected to be delivered in March. 

Council has made a number of requests to the Province during 2023 

Council has made several requests to the Province during 2023 which have been used as the 

basis of York Region’s proposed submission. These have been summarized into five 

categories: addressing the financial impact of Bill 23; infrastructure required to meet new 

provincial housing targets; housing affordability challenges; transit priorities; and human and 

health services needs. 

A $700 million reduction in development charges collections is anticipated over the 
next ten years, for impacts of Bill 23 currently in effect 

Development charges are used to pay for the additional infrastructure needed to service new 

growth. Bill 23 reduced the amount of development charges the Region will be able to collect by 

phasing in Council-approved rates, eliminating or reducing eligible services and providing 

potential new discounts and exemptions to developers. Throughout 2023, the financial impact of 

Bill 23 was refined as more information from the Province became available. The most recent 

estimate, as reported in the 2024 Fiscal Strategy Report, is that the collection reductions would 

2024 Ontario Budget Consultation 2 

https://news.ontario.ca/en/release/1003664/ontario-to-release-annual-fall-economic-statement-november-2
https://www.ontario.ca/page/2024-budget-consultations
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=41800


   
 

            

           

            

     

    

            

           

         

          

   

          

         

             

       

  
 

             

           

           

               

           

           

      

            

       

          

  

   

      

          

   

          

 

        

     

12 

be approximately $700 million over the next ten years, comprised of $284 million in reduced 

collections for water and wastewater services and $415 million for all other services. The $700 

million does not include changes to the Act, that are not currently in effect, that would provide 

exemptions for affordable rental, affordable ownership and attainable housing and would result 

in further reductions beyond the current estimate. 

The Province recognized that Bill 23 posed a challenge to municipalities and in a November 30, 

2022 letter to the City of Toronto and the Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) 

indicated it will assist in transition by keeping municipalities financially whole. However, to date, 

the Province has not made any funding commitment to address the Region’s expected 
development charges collection reductions. 

In the absence of funding from other levels of government, collection reductions, due to Bill 23, 

would have to be made up from non-development charges revenue. As an example, the one-

time additional tax levy and user rate increase required to fund the 2024 to 2033 development 

charges collection reductions would be 3.7% in 2024 and 7.9% in 2025, respectively. 

To support 100% of Provincial housing targets, the Region would need an 
additional $2.6 billion to build more unplanned and accelerated infrastructure 

To support the Provincial Housing targets, York Region would need to grow by about two to four 

times higher than historic trends. The significant advancement of population growth creates new 

infrastructure pressure for the Region. The 2024, 10-year capital plan includes nearly $7.6 

billion of growth-related infrastructure. Of this amount, just under $3 billion will be for water and 

wastewater and just over $3 billion will be for roads and transit spending to support growth 

across the Region. This investment represents the maximum that the Region can afford while 

maintaining its debt at a fiscally sustainable level. 

To meet 100% of these targets, the 10-year Capital Plan would require an additional $2.6 billion 

in unplanned and accelerated infrastructure, including transit, water, wastewater, roads, and 

housing. If the Region is required to finance these projects using its own resources, it will cause 

debt levels to elevate and be maintained well above levels recognized in previous analyses to 

be fiscally sustainable. 

In November 2023, Council passed a resolution requesting the Province: 

 Contribute funding toward the cost of unplanned and accelerated infrastructure to meet 

the housing targets 

 Commit to keeping the Region financially whole from the reduced development charges 

collections 

 Make upper-tier municipalities eligible for funding under the Building Faster Fund and 

the Housing-Enabling Water Systems Fund 

2024 Ontario Budget Consultation 3 

https://www.amo.on.ca/sites/default/files/assets/DOCUMENTS/Bill%2023/MMAH%20LTR%20AP%20Response%20to%20Bill%2023%20Comments%202022-11-30.pdf
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=38822
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/Meeting.aspx?Id=b9c4a593-fc1e-4011-9801-646595b94562&Agenda=PostMinutes&lang=English&Item=24&Tab=attachments


   
 

  
 

            

          

       

         

          

        

          

         

          

       

           

            

       

          

           

           

             

       

 
 

            

       

        

        

     

         

       

         

     

          

         

          

           

        

          

        

13 

Provincial support is needed for housing affordability needs, including increasing 
the supply of community housing 

Council declared that York Region is facing a housing affordability crisis in February 2021. As in 

prior years, in March and June 2023, Council requested that senior levels of government 

commit two-thirds of the cost to build an additional 1,852 housing units to address growing 

needs, with the Provincial one-third share totalling $216 million. Council has also previously 

requested that the Province provide the Region with its share of Provincial revenues collected 

through the Non-Resident Speculation Tax (NRST) to support York’s affordable housing 

initiatives, most recently through the 2023 Ontario budget consultation process. The latest 

publicly available figures showed that between 2017 and 2022, the Province collected $1.06 

billion in NRST revenues, of which $258 million was collected from York Region. 

Although the Canada-Ontario Community Housing Initiative (COCHI) and the Ontario Priorities 

Housing Initiative (OPHI) help provide support housing provider capital repairs, they are not 

sufficient to address both capital repair and new supply needs and funds such as OPHI are 

expected to taper off by 2027-28. 

The Community Housing Development Master Plan will identify development opportunities, 

estimated costs, and potential funding sources. The Plan will support the Region’s continued 
advocacy and will help the Region to respond quickly to available funding opportunities. Without 

increased funding for development, rent subsidies and new rental supply, the Region will not be 

able to sustain or increase the number of households offered housing in future years. 

Rising cost of living and a lack of affordable housing options place increasing 
pressure on homelessness programs and supports 

In February 2023, Council approved a total budget of $31.8 million for programs aimed at 

combating homelessness, of which $13.3 million is tax levy-funded. Also in February 2023, 

Council allocated $12.8 million over two years, with provisional funding sourced from the 

Pandemic Management and Recovery Reserve Fund, including $4.1 million to address urgent 

needs of residents experiencing homelessness, $5.5 million to increase, sustain and enhance 

the community housing system, and $3.2 million to address human services gaps, including 

mental health and human trafficking supports. Although the Region continues to align with its 

mandate as Service Manager for housing and homelessness, senior government funding is 

critical to help meet growing demand. 

This includes in March 2023, York Region Council along with AMO requested that the Province 

acknowledge homelessness as a social, economic, and health crisis and take action to address 

it. In February 2023, York Region Council approved a gross expenditure budget of $31.8 million 

for programs that directly address homelessness, with $13.3 million funded through regional tax 

levy. A June 2023 Memorandum reported the number of people experiencing chronic 

homelessness grew by 63% increase in between 2019 and 2022, and the number of people 

living unsheltered grew by 39% from 2021 to 2022. 

2024 Ontario Budget Consultation 4 

https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/Meeting.aspx?Id=345a55b6-792b-4565-90c0-c7e4e389620d&Agenda=PostMinutes&lang=English&Item=21&Tab=attachments
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=35313
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=38996
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=40466
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/FileStream.ashx?DocumentId=38253
https://www.ontario.ca/document/non-resident-speculation-tax/non-resident-speculation-tax-collected#section-0
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=27790
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/Meeting.aspx?Id=95dc332c-63ce-436e-a3b0-ac9144616ebe&Agenda=Merged&lang=English&Item=13&Tab=attachments
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=38670
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=38996
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=40446


   
 

 

         

       

       

          

          

         

           

       

   
 

        

            

           

       

           

       

       

         

        

        

       

         

        

      

         

      

        

  
 

       

         

              

      

           

           

          

14 

Building a transportation network to accommodate growth requires partnership 
with all levels of government 

The Region’s 2022 Transportation Master Plan guides the long-term vision for the Region’s 

transportation network and guides the Transportation Capital Program. To sustainably deliver 

on a connected, efficient and reliable transportation network for the Region’s growing 
communities, Council has advocated for Provincial funding for priority Bus Rapid Transit 

projects. Although these can only move forward with the support of senior governments, the 

Region’s Tabled 2024 Budget includes spending to advance priority bus rapid transit projects to 

a state of readiness. Council has also requested the Province to invest in 400 series highways, 

GO rail service expansion and other needs required to address growth. 

Additional funding is required for critical health, child care, long-term care and 
other human services to meet growing needs 

While Provincial funding helps support critical programs like Public Health and Long-Term Care, 

it does not fully bridge the gap in funding impacts of legislation or fully fund the Province’s share 

of costs. For instance, although the Region continues to meet Ontario Public Health Standards 

for the Region’s growing population, York Region has historically contributed more than the 

required cost share for mandatory programs. Although the Province is responsible for mental 

health services and programs supporting survivors of domestic violence and human trafficking, 

funding in these areas is insufficient to meet growing needs. 

The Region’s Ontario Works caseload grew by 55% between 2018 and 2023, driven in part by 

an increase in refugee claimants, without an equivalent increase in administration funding. In 

addition, Ontario Works benefit amounts have not kept pace with growing costs. Council also 

requested support from senior governments to manage additional pressures on the Region’s 

social services and emergency and transitional housing caused by an influx of asylum seekers. 

The Federal-Provincial Canada-Wide Early Learning and Child Care (CWELCC) agreement’s 
objectives include improving access to child care, increasing affordability, and addressing needs 

for priority populations. As reported in March 2023 and in September 2023, the Province's 

allocation of 1,882 new licensed child care spaces over five years (2022-2026) through 

CWELCC falls short of the Region's estimated need for 7,372 spaces. 

Committed dedicated funding is needed to manage impact of other legislative 
requirements 

Direct compliance with the Fixing Long-Term Care Act, 2021 and regulatory amendments which 

came into effect in April 2022 and April 2023 requires additional infrastructure and staffing 

resources. In April 2023, Council endorsed a request to the Province to fully fund the impacts of 

the new legislation and to increase base level-of-care funding. 

Under the Police Services Act, York Region is required to develop a Community Safety and 

Well-Being Plan. The Community Safety and Well-Being Plan was approved by Council in May 

2022 which supports the Healthy Communities Priority of the 2023-2027 Strategic Plan and 

2024 Ontario Budget Consultation 5 

https://www.york.ca/media/108701/download?attachment
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=41233
https://www.york.ca/media/116551/download?attachment
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=39048
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=41386
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=38702
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=40446
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=41152
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=39072
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=40888
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=39071
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=41510
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=41510


   
 

         

          

       

  

  

           

         

         

       

   

 

 

  

  

  

           

    

          

       

            

         

     

 

 

 

  

 

        

         

     

      

       

         

        

       

     

      

15 

supports York Region’s vision of strong, caring and safe communities. Although mandated by 
the Province, there is no dedicated provincial funding to support the Plan. Regional Council has 

allocated approximately $435,000 through the 2023 budget. 

4. Analysis 

Provincial support is requested to help continue delivering critical programs while 
addressing legislative changes, population growth, and affordability pressures 

While recognizing the Provincial support currently received, there is a need for additional 

funding to effectively manage capacity pressures, respond to legislation and accommodate 

growth. In line with previous advocacy and Council positions, Provincial support is requested to 

sustainably deliver critical infrastructure and services. Table 1 below summarizes the requests 

made during 2023. 

Table 1 

Proposed 2024 Provincial Budget Consultation Submission 

Categories Requests 

Addressing 

Financial Impact 

of Bill 23 

Infrastructure 

Required to 

Meet Provincial 

Housing Targets 

 Confirm that the Region will be made financially whole as a result of changes 

to the Act, due to Bill 23, including: 

o For changes currently in effect, which are currently estimated to be at 

least $284 million for water and wastewater-related infrastructure and 

$415 million for all other infrastructure over the next ten years; and 

o For changes not yet in effect, with respect to exemptions for affordable 

and attainable housing, from the reduced development charges 

collections 

 Contribute funding towards the cost of the unplanned and accelerated 

infrastructure needed to meet the Provincial housing targets, including a capital 

contribution to York Region’s sewage, roads, transit and housing infrastructure 

costs that are increasing by more than $2.6 billion 

 Make upper-tier municipalities eligible for funding under the Building Faster 

Fund which could provide up to $400 million in total funding per year, for three 

years, to municipalities that are on track to meet their targets 

 Make upper-tier municipalities eligible for funding under the newly announced 

Housing-Enabling Water Systems Fund which could provide all Ontario 

municipalities with up to $200 million in total funding, over three years 

2024 Ontario Budget Consultation 6 



16 

Categories Requests 

 Contribute $216 million as the Province’s one-third share of funding for 1,852 Housing 
new community housing units Affordability 

Challenges 
 Provide York Region with its share of Provincial NRST revenues to support 

affordable housing initiatives, reported to be $258 million to the end of 2022 

 Provide increased, long-term and predictable capital programs such as OPHI 

and COCHI to support the Region’s goal to increase the supply of community 
housing and sustain existing supply 

 Provide increased, long-term and predictable funding beyond 2029 for the 

Canada-Ontario Housing Benefit to improve affordability and provide stability 

for renters 

 Increase capital and operating funding for construction and administration of 

required emergency and transitional housing facilities due to ongoing 

increases in service demand 

Transit Priorities 

Human and 

Health Services 

Needs 

   
 

  

 

 

         

    

        

         

        

         

    

        

      

  

        

     

  

       

       

         

       

        

   

       

        

    

        

       

      

 

 

          

      

           

    

    

     

  

 Maintain programs to support transit service recovery and growth including 

maintaining provincial gas tax funding at current levels 

 Provide the Region with additional funding for priority bus rapid transit projects 

including Jane Street North (Highway 7 to Major Mackenzie Drive), Enterprise 

Boulevard (Andre De Grasse Street to Kennedy Road), and Highway 7 East 

(Kennedy Road to York Durham Line) 

 Make a long-term commitment to fund fare integration required to support 

integrated transit in the GTA and improve utilization of cross-boundary 

services including Spadina and Yonge Subways 

 Support growth with new or improved 400 series and arterial highways and 

interchanges, GO Rail service expansion (new stations and extensions of two-

way, all day and 15-minute or better service) 

 Contribute funding to ensure York Region will be made financially whole due to 

unplanned expenditures to support the influx of refugees, refugee claimants 

and asylum seekers, estimated to cost up to $4.3 million until March 31, 2024 

with possible additional costs if initiatives are extended 

 Increase and index Ontario Works rates with inflation, similar to Ontario 

Disability Support Program, and increase administration funding to manage a 

growing caseload 

2024 Ontario Budget Consultation 7 



17 

Categories Requests 

 Allocate additional funding for a total of 7,372 licensed CWELCC child care 

spaces to York Region to respond to resident needs, and increase wages of 

child care centre staff, including Registered Early Childhood Educators to 

support recruitment and retention 

 Align operating funding for administration of Public Health programs with 

increases in service demand, population growth and inflation to the 75%/25% 

provincial, municipal split 

 Contribute funding towards ongoing operational and additional expenditures 

resultant from regulatory changes under the Fixing Long-Term Care Act, 2021, 

including estimated annual impacts of Phase 1 amendments of up to $650,000 

per home per year, and Phase 2 costs of an additional $400,000 per home 

over a 10-year period 

 Provide dedicated, long-term funding for implementation of Community Safety 

and Well-being Plans as mandated under the Community Safety and Policing 

Act, 2019 

 Provide increased and long-term funding for the provincial anti-human 

trafficking strategy and local capacity to respond to ongoing increase of these 

crimes in Ontario 

   
 

  

       

        

      

   

      

    

   

       

         

         

          

  

          

       

    

         

          

  

 

  
  

   

        

            

       

             

          

        

          

   

   

      

        

It is recommended Council request the Province amend the Development Charges 
Act to ensure non-profit housing receiving exemptions delivers housing that meets 
a required level of affordability 

Currently, non-profit residential developments receiving a development charges exemption 

under section 4.2 of the Development Charges Act, 1997 are not required to deliver any level of 

affordable housing or maintain their non-profit status for any timeframe. 

To address this, Council could request that the Province make the changes outlined in Table 2. 

Staff recommend deferring to definitions of affordability contained in federal, provincial, or 

municipal funding programs rather than prescribing a specific, qualifying, ‘affordable’ definition. 
The rationale for not providing a prescribed ‘affordable’ definition is as follows: 

 There are competing affordability definitions embedded within federal/provincial/ 

municipal programs 

 Market rents are used in non-profit housing developments to help reduce overall 

operating costs or offset costs for subsidized units 

2024 Ontario Budget Consultation 8 



   
 

      

         

           

 

 

           

        

       

        

      

      

 

           

            

       

 

          

            

       

         

        

   

    

   

 

  
 

          

         

        

             

        

   

       

          

           

           

         

        

18 

 A non-profit housing provider’s non-profit status, and mandate to deliver affordable 

housing, would be reflected in its articles of incorporation, and would restrict what it can 

do with its revenues, which in turn should restrict what the provide can charge in rent 

Table 2 

Proposed Amendments to development charges exemptions for non-profit housing 

 Amend section 4.2 of the Act, providing that non-profit rental or ownership housing 

developments, receiving this exemption, must be developed under a prescribed federal, 

provincial, or municipal program that includes affordability criteria*. 

o In an instance where a non-profit rental or ownership housing development was 

developed without assistance from a federal, provincial, or municipal program, 

qualification to be determined by the municipal Council. 

 Amend section 4.2 of the Act, providing that any non-profit housing development receiving 

this exemption must maintain its non-profit status, as defined under the Act, for 25 years 

(time frame aligning with the affordable ownership exemptions under the Act). 

 To ensure developments receiving these exemptions maintain their non-profit status, it is 

requested that agreements be required and that they be registered on title. Together with 

registering agreements on title, should the non-profit status of the development change 

within the first 25 years, it is requested the development charges which would have ordinarily 

been due, become immediately payable plus interest, at a rate of Prime +1%** 

*The Province is also requested to consult municipalities in developing prescribed list of programs 

**Prime + 1% aligns with the maximum interest charge applicable to freezing and installment provisions under 

sections 26.1 and 26.2 of the Act 

Responding to the 2024 Provincial Budget consultation supports York Region’s 
Vision focus of good government and economic vitality 

York Region’s Vision of good government is one that is democratic, accessible, equitable and 

reliable. This response is evidence of the reliability of Regional Council as well as Council’s 

commitment to delivering fiscally sustainable services in support of growth. The requests 

included in this report, if reflected in the 2024 Ontario budget, would support all areas of focus of 

the Region’s Vision, including Healthy Communities, and Sustainable Environment as well. 

5. Financial Considerations 

While there are no immediate financial considerations associated with the recommendations of 

this report, the submission is expected to help inform the 2024 Ontario budget. Should the 

Province adopt the proposed requests, our active participation could lead to crucial provincial 

investments and policy adjustments aimed at offsetting the financial burdens introduced by Bill 

23, supporting the delivery of critical infrastructure required to achieve Provincially mandated 

housing targets, and continuing to deliver quality services to York Region’s growing population. 

2024 Ontario Budget Consultation 9 

https://www.york.ca/media/107711/download?attachment


   
 

  

           

          

     

   

        

           

 

 

 

          

        

    

 

 

 

 

   

      

     
    

  

 

   

 

 

19 

6. Local Impact 

The submission as part of the 2024 Provincial Budget consultation process, is intended to 

support the continued provision of vital infrastructure and servicing required in a financially 

sustainable way to all nine local municipalities. 

7. Conclusion 

This report largely summarizes positions and requests that Council has made throughout the 

year that if endorsed, would form York Region’s submission to the Ontario 2024 Budget 
consultation. 

For more information on this report, please contact Edward Hankins, Director, Treasury Office 

and Deputy Treasurer at 1-877-464-9675 ext. 71644. Accessible formats or communication 

supports are available upon request. 

Recommended by: Laura Mirabella 

Commissioner of Finance and Regional Treasurer 

Approved for Submission: Erin Mahoney 

Chief Administrative Officer 

December 14, 2023 

15866750 

2024 Ontario Budget Consultation 10 



20 

From: Ontario News 
To: Sudak, Ashley 
Subject: Ontario Launching “One Fare" to Save Transit Riders $1,600 
Date: February 5, 2024 9:57:25 AM 

NEWS RELEASE 

Ontario Launching “One Fare" to Save Transit 
Riders $1,600 

Transit riders using multiple transit agencies will 
transfer at no extra charge 

February 05, 2024 
Premier's Office 

TORONTO — The Ontario government is keeping costs down for public 
transit riders with the launch of “One Fare,” which will save riders an 
average of $1,600 each year. Beginning February 26, 2024, riders will pay 
only once as they transfer for free between the TTC and participating transit 
agencies in the Greater Toronto Area, including GO Transit. 

“Our government is on a mission to keep costs down for the hardworking 
people of Ontario,” said Premier Doug Ford. “One Fare will eliminate 
double fares and put $1,600 back into the pockets of transit riders. 
Alongside the hundreds of dollars we’re saving for drivers by cutting the 
gas tax, scrapping road tolls and eliminating the licence plate sticker fee, 
we’re providing commuters with real, tangible relief.” 

Fully funded by the Ontario government, One Fare will lead to over eight 
million new rides every year and will make cross-boundary travel more 

mailto:newsroom@ontario.ca
mailto:Ashley.Sudak@york.ca
https://u32956855.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=VxSvqh1iUMA3PxWQ9jK65-2Fb2LDVOvA4DuaPJnVXcTt-2ByT8-2BknP-2BnxNktwRZ6IDh0634oPL-2FmYb1W71vB7UmPFPHKxyZalCqBif3hxUhqzRNJQZu-2BCzSTrir3eLklG0JtNcRbCcD7B7eHPyH5L0F9jiAxGyiFqchKlgYjv-2BGVo1ZT7-2BasFRp8NFlvHy7WPdgkqcbAZKrk5-2BInH4oPVNSwaEkvabX4EGs-2F-2BkDOHkFFDBz90MMavdxZdG2sp9GtrCzJCv6-_KVyBcpjXADXifSWVpM8nQY9jv399Yl6G2aMkoVZZrGoAb7IQP3jYVJQs5lsl8GOEMRVPHPoifOVGaKwvzH93Qce-2F-2FjJDJoGCmnSneRqI0xNBAFc58IgqJjpWiMyPC4FRQqwO7odteH7MW81PHmvJIXKpFyXzG7Z6SqwwyS5jlm21gdr47C5lt3he37SJ2IQGsSHoxBkby-2B8bNwxpZoOwD5-2FX-2BXOY7HeFgn3pjY4MpoE-3D


21 

affordable and convenient for students, seniors and other commuters 
transferring between GO Transit, TTC, Brampton Transit, Durham Region 
Transit, MiWay and York Region Transit. 

“At a time when many families feel like they’re struggling to get ahead, our 
government is making public transit simpler, more convenient and more 
affordable,” said Vijay Thanigasalam, Associate Minister of Transportation. 
“Under the leadership of Premier Ford, we will continue to make historic 
investments in public transit and put money back in commuters’ pockets, 
where it belongs.” 

One Fare builds on improvements the government made in 2022 to 
eliminate fares between GO Transit and several transit agencies in the 
Greater Golden Horseshoe. The government will continue to work with 
municipal partners to identify opportunities to make transit more seamless 
for riders by harmonizing discounted fares and other measures. 

“Public transit should be a convenient and affordable option for getting to 
work, school or running errands,” said Olivia Chow, Mayor of Toronto. 
“Ontario’s One Fare will make it easier and cheaper to transfer between the 
TTC, GO Transit and other transit agencies. When governments continue 
to work together, we can make life more affordable and invest in services 
families rely on, like high quality public transit that costs you less.” 

Over the next decade, Ontario is investing $70.5 billion to transform public 
transit in the province, including the largest subway expansion in Canadian 
history with the Ontario Line, the Scarborough Subway Extension, the 
Eglinton Crosstown West Extension and the Yonge North Subway 
Extension. By 2031, the province will introduce two-way, all-day GO train 
service, every 15 minutes in key corridors in the Greater Golden Horseshoe 
to connect more people to transit, jobs and housing for generations to 
come. 

Quick Facts 

Since 2023, transit users have been able to tap debit or credit cards 
on PRESTO devices to travel on all PRESTO participating transit 
agencies throughout the Greater Toronto and Hamilton Area, and 

https://u32956855.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=KrbLBfR8RR33PXDWibZZmRGkidXgFYynqFqC02lN9EKAcsTILugnhWLnO-2FB2hXEofRKboyzHPhPOt2RoHw-2FYLG7jvvMxW-2BpAljGs-2B1OxMB-2FTc4nLV6pwBqCi-2B6xGnmfzZnvM5KGuRxw7E4tPYR1woaUaxF8jcMgy2xEh7kjwWPgTd0oM6wTfgEtGPB0x-2BpV3RU9q1HSiPP8PKeRWo41-2Bvx5PRF96fdg7J-2FZt4vDTKRiY-2FEp5d3LPDlLZDSRZSn9A9WVM_KVyBcpjXADXifSWVpM8nQY9jv399Yl6G2aMkoVZZrGoAb7IQP3jYVJQs5lsl8GOENbLWAFwjwz8XpyoZBtZzcotBl-2FSLJC-2FEAKDLbG1cLGKnSivpvd0k7JFiDy6CiQiLQC48oLFydgxwVel3N2H4txocJlazbZKos7vUVbRRRVnuZS6jt52Ae5o-2FpSxpNsFDW1MZ0Gq7pDN0F3pFOLBQ4oMIFvb7w7SGdztbl-2FssHLE-3D
https://u32956855.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=VxSvqh1iUMA3PxWQ9jK65-2Fb2LDVOvA4DuaPJnVXcTt-2BYVlLxJ2DHQIQMbp3Z9DDyQMGz5yQr8-2FGy-2FLzJRDN7n5RQfHAIrA39yBTMSXQTvVIr11qjmcH45PCpFBH1ixvuErNacN0uE-2FHSsvfnYcNrmhjWklkgkqolomNIrHfSHh8esdtqSldk9QSglPQInD7wI-2BtXz5qyrIylqoK1qJiktZWc-2B5hkQTGLWZ5T8-2BrJJ4hYh1NbE2dvp27-2FG4-2BgaqDlVnh1I-2FxfmiXsrdtn2oUcdCf0X8PeACfVqocIqymULg4FCiaoshN5IQosOBoakFuHNv1gPZF2KPN1p6-2BAU-2FWlRw-3D-3DMR0K_KVyBcpjXADXifSWVpM8nQY9jv399Yl6G2aMkoVZZrGoAb7IQP3jYVJQs5lsl8GOEpBjyE8eikEzLYNCJ8p0HL6WSf88Ll-2FzYrDU0Dy6CGqZrfcWGoQiyQndrv-2FI5c7VknaAvE0Q3nTUg6276WkeIkHqIT8EM6if6W2RhFSbRpmXp05vANit1LwdZeN0RMOV-2Byyub-2BGINI7BbkgW2wwaD5ob6syks73dE0y9uMG8lRvk-3D
https://u32956855.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=VxSvqh1iUMA3PxWQ9jK65-2Fb2LDVOvA4DuaPJnVXcTt-2BYVlLxJ2DHQIQMbp3Z9DDyQMGz5yQr8-2FGy-2FLzJRDN7n5RQfHAIrA39yBTMSXQTvVIr11qjmcH45PCpFBH1ixvuErNacN0uE-2FHSsvfnYcNrmhjWklkgkqolomNIrHfSHh8esdtqSldk9QSglPQInD7wI-2BtXz5qyrIylqoK1qJiktZWc-2B5hkQTGLWZ5T8-2BrJJ4hYh1NbE2dvp27-2FG4-2BgaqDlVnh1I-2FxfmiXsrdtn2oUcdCf0X8PeACfVqocIqymULg4FCiaoshN5IQosOBoakFuHNv1gPZF2KPN1p6-2BAU-2FWlRw-3D-3DMR0K_KVyBcpjXADXifSWVpM8nQY9jv399Yl6G2aMkoVZZrGoAb7IQP3jYVJQs5lsl8GOEpBjyE8eikEzLYNCJ8p0HL6WSf88Ll-2FzYrDU0Dy6CGqZrfcWGoQiyQndrv-2FI5c7VknaAvE0Q3nTUg6276WkeIkHqIT8EM6if6W2RhFSbRpmXp05vANit1LwdZeN0RMOV-2Byyub-2BGINI7BbkgW2wwaD5ob6syks73dE0y9uMG8lRvk-3D


 

22 

there have been more than 29 million PRESTO contactless boardings 
to date. 
The province continues to expedite the planning, design and 
construction of its five priority transit projects under the Building 
Transit Faster Act, 2020, which includes the Ontario Line, the 
Scarborough Subway Extension, the Eglinton Crosstown West 
Extension, the Yonge North Subway Extension and Hamilton Light 
Rail Transit project. 
Ontario’s One Fare Program is part of over 100 actions outlined in the 
Greater Golden Horseshoe Transportation Plan, including fare and 
service integration. 

Quotes 

"Ontario’s One Fare Program is another example of how we’re saving 
commuters time and money. Whether it’s to work, school or social events, 
our government’s historic investments in Ontario’s public transportation 
system is making it easier, faster and cheaper for people to get where they 
need to go." 

- Prabmeet Sarkaria 
Minister of Transportation 

"Ontario’s One Fare Program is a major milestone for fare integration that 
helps connect more communities across the Greater Toronto Area. 
Programs like this will reduce barriers to cross-boundary travel and will 
bring more people to transit, estimating more than 20,000 new riders per 
day. Metrolinx will continue working with the Ontario government to make 
taking transit from Brampton, Oshawa, or anywhere in between simpler, 
more convenient, and more affordable than ever before." 

- Phil Verster 
Metrolinx, CEO 

"I’m pleased to welcome the Ontario government's One Fare Program. This 
innovative initiative, allowing seamless fare integration between Brampton 
Transit, GO Transit and other GTA transit agencies, is a significant boost 
for our community. With Brampton Transit leading the country in ridership 

https://u32956855.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=VxSvqh1iUMA3PxWQ9jK65-2Fb2LDVOvA4DuaPJnVXcTt8uwDJ1LPNQ-2F-2F3eKXGHV-2FiPFAfLV8DYe4VkxcjFdmGQyQ7RvbWOde6IM-2FgvV1QcATYMjXS3Jww7lJGeL-2B2uiXAOPD-2FT0GeioSkGtM-2F8qGU-2F-2FDDL3gxCSf6KVCziw2dNlT4oO7QxslRZCHTwe03QzPX97l-2FV6bUP27fAkIFq6bN-2FFgbT1dXoE42NkcV-2BT8jzJA2IMh3QD3RkdWFTlLUsuPe8ViMfEXCKmKNuJjbIHqlQhjZBRbwwSHMobmBiLGUPtl5Wq6RR9EZMV5GBH0wCCsK5VkTBEpB6Od8NTxfEGdGloQ-3D-3D3fDH_KVyBcpjXADXifSWVpM8nQY9jv399Yl6G2aMkoVZZrGoAb7IQP3jYVJQs5lsl8GOEzDacYveWEmvY6uhy3hpYC0n4z6Xtq8T0N7g4-2FnDTquRYw1ZKbmo9Oace-2FRuxByfaj-2F-2Ffk7v-2Fu3vDnwy9zK69db-2FWu3vjE23Rs7-2B-2FJFemRmXdfXz1jG6WAkQjLgjfzKdRGdZcAoZTfgxgjkcXrnj4gfnnEAIwLWxhHCXmTFsxoYM-3D
https://u32956855.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=VxSvqh1iUMA3PxWQ9jK65-2Fb2LDVOvA4DuaPJnVXcTt8uwDJ1LPNQ-2F-2F3eKXGHV-2FiPFAfLV8DYe4VkxcjFdmGQyQ7RvbWOde6IM-2FgvV1QcATYMjXS3Jww7lJGeL-2B2uiXAOPD-2FT0GeioSkGtM-2F8qGU-2F-2FDDL3gxCSf6KVCziw2dNlT4oO7QxslRZCHTwe03QzPX97l-2FV6bUP27fAkIFq6bN-2FFgbT1dXoE42NkcV-2BT8jzJA2IMh3QD3RkdWFTlLUsuPe8ViMfEXCKmKNuJjbIHqlQhjZBRbwwSHMobmBiLGUPtl5Wq6RR9EZMV5GBH0wCCsK5VkTBEpB6Od8NTxfEGdGloQ-3D-3D3fDH_KVyBcpjXADXifSWVpM8nQY9jv399Yl6G2aMkoVZZrGoAb7IQP3jYVJQs5lsl8GOEzDacYveWEmvY6uhy3hpYC0n4z6Xtq8T0N7g4-2FnDTquRYw1ZKbmo9Oace-2FRuxByfaj-2F-2Ffk7v-2Fu3vDnwy9zK69db-2FWu3vjE23Rs7-2B-2FJFemRmXdfXz1jG6WAkQjLgjfzKdRGdZcAoZTfgxgjkcXrnj4gfnnEAIwLWxhHCXmTFsxoYM-3D
https://u32956855.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=VxSvqh1iUMA3PxWQ9jK654qkZMpKpTByR4O3bcPJM4qKtoENUTSniqtdgbF-2BXkK9SRV58AM4RoDLk0gBCDuQlzm3nonhXJsDAuaC4sb7Fq9KIHK0La672QmvviN6sKbWIbrTeFKzbQUY9Q-2B8aMu2Ae3K41LGCFTEJ6UCqhZFw2L73tzVTDdCoi0UkTxeVl-2BREynkZENeMorxlSV8ENPlyF3rBWDHGd0xOCcUg75qr5kwYn6hTK7Arn1LNFiAdRgAcKmWQnavJeDoUTBMX545-2B4zEKmfbARxdTsy5He8FkzMM4KdPXdpDIQpkw-2Fy5PQGYkWUoSGTtik4RQOu-2FTlC-2Byg-3D-3DJwHd_KVyBcpjXADXifSWVpM8nQY9jv399Yl6G2aMkoVZZrGoAb7IQP3jYVJQs5lsl8GOEhIrxwsW86eWa09OnfCYi9BkVvuXCRUnuQ0uiy71XEgKNhV6zm-2Ba3HdaSr3TKEoAP3ewr5eL-2B-2FamnTazyEmQ4c6Szv387GqWuhlrd9LDGwEib4-2B866QIsTLYzVdoC8W3icBFYtpYchg7fpZZAK9vNybV1yYV6nduONNZsIiIbJaY-3D


23 

growth – a 160 per cent increase in the decade before the pandemic and a 
remarkable 30 per cent rise over pre-pandemic levels – this program will 
further enhance public transit's accessibility and affordability in Brampton – 
while providing substantial savings for commuters." 

- Patrick Brown 
Mayor of Brampton 

"Transportation remains a top priority for York Regional Council, our more 
than 1.2 million residents and 66,500 businesses. Simplifying fare 
payments with the new One Fare Program puts travellers’ experience first 
and makes our collective transit systems even more convenient, reliable 
and affordable. One Fare removes boundaries and barriers to travelling 
across different municipalities, allows for more convenient access and 
supports our growing communities." 

- Wayne Emmerson 
York Region Chairman and CEO 

"Through a seamless and affordable experience, Ontario’s One Fare 
Program will provide an attractive travel option for Durham Region and 
Toronto residents as they travel between our communities on public transit. 
The Region of Durham and Durham Region Transit are thrilled to 
participate in this program which will save transit customers money and 
increase transit ridership across the GTA." 

- John Henry 
Durham Regional Chair and CEO 

"CUTA welcomes the Ontario government's introduction of the One Fare 
Program for riders in Toronto and the GTA. This fare integration initiative 
will help create a more seamless and cost-effective experience for 
commuters across various transit networks. By reducing the financial 
burden of multiple transit fares and encouraging a shift towards more 
sustainable modes of travel, this program will help make public transit more 
affordable across these fast-growing communities." 

- Marco D’Angelo 
Canadian Urban Transit Association (CUTA) President and CEO 



 

24 

"The Ontario Chamber has been a strong advocate of fare integration, and 
we applaud the government for taking this step in partnership with 
municipalities. This announcement will help Ontarians and visitors connect 
more affordably to their places of work and leisure, alleviating traffic 
congestion while strengthening our economy." 

- Daniel Tisch 
President and CEO of the Ontario Chamber of Commerce 

"York University commends the Ontario government for eliminating the 
need for double fares by creating a more integrated fare system. The new 
One Fare Program will have a significant impact on our community as over 
74 per cent of our students, and most of our faculty and staff, commute to 
campus via GO Transit as well as the two subway stations on our Keele 
Campus. An integrated fare system will not only create a more affordable, 
accessible, and efficient transportation network but also continue to provide 
a sustainable transportation option that will help to reduce our community’s 
carbon footprint." 

- Rhonda Lenton 
President & Vice-Chancellor, York University 

"Many members of the University of Toronto community depend on public 
transit for their travel to and from our campuses in Mississauga, 
Scarborough and downtown Toronto. That’s why we welcome the One Fare 
program, which will help make sustainable transit a more affordable option 
for our students, faculty, librarians, and staff." 

- Professor Meric Gertler 
President, Scarborough Community Renewal Organization 

Additional Resources 

One Fare Program 
PRESTO 
Ontario Launching Credit and Debit Payment on TTC 
Ontario Launching Debit Payment on PRESTO Devices 
Ontario Expands PRESTO Credit Payment to More Local Transit 
Agencies 

https://u32956855.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=KrbLBfR8RR33PXDWibZZmRGkidXgFYynqFqC02lN9EKAcsTILugnhWLnO-2FB2hXEofRKboyzHPhPOt2RoHw-2FYLG7jvvMxW-2BpAljGs-2B1OxMB-2FTc4nLV6pwBqCi-2B6xGnmfzZnvM5KGuRxw7E4tPYR1woaUaxF8jcMgy2xEh7kjwWPgTd0oM6wTfgEtGPB0x-2BpV3RU9q1HSiPP8PKeRWo41-2Bvx5PRF96fdg7J-2FZt4vDTKRiY-2FEp5d3LPDlLZDSRZSn9AScFO_KVyBcpjXADXifSWVpM8nQY9jv399Yl6G2aMkoVZZrGoAb7IQP3jYVJQs5lsl8GOEd-2F2CZj4CEvMsRxr9sLcpiVKSv8sI9OIqw-2FwFgwqUKa2uJHza4RFrzclL8NJHWoXdZxm3a63CJVVn4iKz3arQx4A4IOkO8Qzam1eCMV-2FCL4c62IGbXyAqUE4n1dUjeh-2BQ30dQuFtEGkdKZWa-2BDX9I0TZkXXpcGTbYCij4puHpw-2BA-3D
https://u32956855.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=VxSvqh1iUMA3PxWQ9jK654tsqtupntUUfm1mz1gkR3XaH1xvdZX4vLxO3h9RuAYPifu-2F-2B3oHB4hKn3RhtxV04xHt9S-2BAU2vnKRKzZLxZ-2FyqJAN1Vpkp97aCfR8kYvx7Sf01ybpncx-2BfJky5bQbrRjKO6f5JjRwFlGo6M5yBwEnQ1yep-2BkNBSbJcVcrQy-2FN-2FAuRD787wqPGEBoubT-2Fnjtobt7-2F6PgaNgJAiWWWFvRSaHsc7Vjo-2FpaQ7B0crGr9cjEAc6nMgs11ub557Hc82YtYQ-3D-3Dpyo-_KVyBcpjXADXifSWVpM8nQY9jv399Yl6G2aMkoVZZrGoAb7IQP3jYVJQs5lsl8GOEiosl0RpTy-2FFz1T82JUNlp3CXYu4nkM8pJCOelRi7Fsi5O0f7Vzbtfu2bOT1rmlGLn-2BrN4SUdQpojnnEiQbnQ131u3CPAANX-2BuqFy-2BLefy9Yioo4Q778C1XyldzAE8Ct49zC-2BpOi74SwiDgFZGKsua6GjyZKAUEykFAV8uRVY9Ms-3D
https://u32956855.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=VxSvqh1iUMA3PxWQ9jK65-2Fb2LDVOvA4DuaPJnVXcTt-2FrPH9HrtHppuvFpZUXLY619hDdLvsnXwLdM1-2FaY3-2BcrLGclnoUGrBGAoNTgi5Q3rQIXedTfVJNWUcKhK1TQkSpGfdYjFM2zDB-2F6YTU0EnaNhpn4j6bitRR5MbtiWUoFZm6sHTSTLGL8B70cPzs9gS7OKWcPd-2BMGuvY1DQABlZ551wLkci6kdCLJI4UcVYQg70-2B47jjjfmWXBOvTBPoqf8GcCdFlIZIKq0l-2FaDrBuW0tfeZAUhs5pHbt8Z7fzhQEBVu-2FTVKWqPL5AFQhIE2PFMVyLPTe8xAxFunf2Iya6uJdQ-3D-3DZsLy_KVyBcpjXADXifSWVpM8nQY9jv399Yl6G2aMkoVZZrGoAb7IQP3jYVJQs5lsl8GOEgvjIknI3DyyyUP-2BsLoQ6aeNrsoFxtUJ07lQXM-2Fq9qXuw1p4D4eX-2Be-2ByC2iOrgt8B4GEJazIsV0dVn0llHcg9UzTl9cYQNJPU9MwJ3ZYXTWtwgcFchArip-2FbBtUdv06eWxzY8Rfty9McMh9aPDKWo61D0WHg-2FrEh87W1Ohlls8yI-3D
https://u32956855.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=VxSvqh1iUMA3PxWQ9jK65-2Fb2LDVOvA4DuaPJnVXcTt-2FrPH9HrtHppuvFpZUXLY6165j72i6-2FQnMA63JwKBHoCvqcxXsoRHGeB-2BmGrKF9zKgmfdo1C-2F9EEMq-2FqxzDrJqPJZ8d8pxw7cUUtiGWiIhMVLYZv9T9d-2BG8BVfiUrCAb1GD9jt9ekuQIiicx69QAvdajNLGW0bYBXpPH0937kKu4XBHn2CibGojkxkFjnPEvClBxllYPRAgSAzauxSdcJpRB1otuIMNzwhExLF-2B3UB8sPxeNpBe3gh4NhWAVJH24r-2BiETjKutYyf-2B6AUxl4JSG8s6moQQlA5O-2FtsrsAUygBjQ-3D-3DDnf4_KVyBcpjXADXifSWVpM8nQY9jv399Yl6G2aMkoVZZrGoAb7IQP3jYVJQs5lsl8GOEodHCY7F4a6-2Bag5NogbyxcXLlgIaZ8WYx5RQnC02CLOaNW6rpfFCMC3nuTvXV4Bx3b-2FXlb0n9Zr0u6tA1hX54JHXcGaDkYXd-2FpoBbMHAebet5CQFSFtVtEEe-2BbHv1MygO5mkOMAFm6N9aKmlqXima7BI6V4aGkAyy20ARGMJMDyY-3D
https://u32956855.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=VxSvqh1iUMA3PxWQ9jK65-2Fb2LDVOvA4DuaPJnVXcTt-2Fz9c9KoSCnv-2FH7R5pdqUKwIMSwdM9kRwFHLOTjer6lOZNNKgJ7nkfkJ0Ty0f-2Fvp0RB9iMhRY-2FWq-2BywxizS4burCrO6sddG2718U7zrYCPUuCSkWzqGKLGM1nvX-2BMOrkB4df-2FcNVs9fgvdwPA7J85uk9ZWjDT2lX-2BkUADrwR-2FKRxftWW-2B-2BO-2BDW-2BD6gRx0up-2BzY0N1AAdaSjfMABRbJKx3-2BbilRW4NXKCdlI-2FBvV8BCeR3iIvdOCIxDHT7Wjplk1wxPuF5UOIszIiIdvbLO-2BvAi4CYS49Y1nSkW44licnH3wQkWyouKClid-2B30aP-2B-2BFnbg0-3DJhDr_KVyBcpjXADXifSWVpM8nQY9jv399Yl6G2aMkoVZZrGoAb7IQP3jYVJQs5lsl8GOExUo31CMRN4vAOYJ3O6Suf43LjDbkHiMGpCGeUz6uLOFqXSMd3P4L-2BhS-2B-2Bu-2FzHRoEEmgiTLd952nYWlm6S4-2BScnGEM-2Fs5FcWXnAPkzLbiiBYlZ7Tprvli7SlMyFW65Cg7CuDDi-2BrLOt3ik8-2BsHjJraT-2FxrydIoGGqul6mwlHPAA0-3D
https://u32956855.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=VxSvqh1iUMA3PxWQ9jK65-2Fb2LDVOvA4DuaPJnVXcTt-2Fz9c9KoSCnv-2FH7R5pdqUKwIMSwdM9kRwFHLOTjer6lOZNNKgJ7nkfkJ0Ty0f-2Fvp0RB9iMhRY-2FWq-2BywxizS4burCrO6sddG2718U7zrYCPUuCSkWzqGKLGM1nvX-2BMOrkB4df-2FcNVs9fgvdwPA7J85uk9ZWjDT2lX-2BkUADrwR-2FKRxftWW-2B-2BO-2BDW-2BD6gRx0up-2BzY0N1AAdaSjfMABRbJKx3-2BbilRW4NXKCdlI-2FBvV8BCeR3iIvdOCIxDHT7Wjplk1wxPuF5UOIszIiIdvbLO-2BvAi4CYS49Y1nSkW44licnH3wQkWyouKClid-2B30aP-2B-2BFnbg0-3DJhDr_KVyBcpjXADXifSWVpM8nQY9jv399Yl6G2aMkoVZZrGoAb7IQP3jYVJQs5lsl8GOExUo31CMRN4vAOYJ3O6Suf43LjDbkHiMGpCGeUz6uLOFqXSMd3P4L-2BhS-2B-2Bu-2FzHRoEEmgiTLd952nYWlm6S4-2BScnGEM-2Fs5FcWXnAPkzLbiiBYlZ7Tprvli7SlMyFW65Cg7CuDDi-2BrLOt3ik8-2BsHjJraT-2FxrydIoGGqul6mwlHPAA0-3D


25 

Ontario Making it Easier and More Convenient to Take Transit 
Ontario Cutting the Cost of Taking Transit 

Media Contacts 

Caitlin Clark 
Premier’s Office 
Caitlin.Clark2@ontario.ca 

Dakota Brasier 
Minister Sarkaria's Office 
Dakota.Brasier@ontario.ca 

Tanya Blazina 
Communications Branch 
MTO Media 
437-327-1158 

We have recently updated Ontario Newsroom Subscription. You may receive additional emails. If you 
would like to update your subscription preferences or unsubscribe, click the 'manage your 
subscriptions' or 'unsubscribe' links down below. 

Visit the Newsroom 
Manage your subscriptions 

Unsubscribe 

https://u32956855.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=VxSvqh1iUMA3PxWQ9jK65-2Fb2LDVOvA4DuaPJnVXcTt-2Fz9c9KoSCnv-2FH7R5pdqUKwSLaysG4JSpbNm6Ssnb-2FHKEoojwenvdOWYlZvHOzos5JA4fB-2F5-2FSmnr-2FNYOoLnu7P3moXtZpO4AhoVKi01U-2BkOs6plGs68G-2BbXfPyZacf-2B0pqAohDj81-2FPnVhCEFEQx9ZvCNzrzNJsgyahoISo6GV9uyHUtLCzVIPBQPHTCAtd-2F7-2FDCyLScUf4tTGz64cdrJjhlRHAwyglQES0nmGkLON1IGN7c-2BIAINcjh3aszyCTNLvHhqOUAitzKHJQa7bKDKF0c85PWqFmKQ1LXeJmkNsJ7Awf0yeuLdO0a6mbioxADk-3D9DBo_KVyBcpjXADXifSWVpM8nQY9jv399Yl6G2aMkoVZZrGoAb7IQP3jYVJQs5lsl8GOEVnG8ve4O-2BUEQDD73MEQz3g-2F71zrL9GoJibt4nQb3395VVZUVNMxr0Nw4tqjyxmZlmQ5NMh6Np-2FlWE4qE-2FQlVweLZJGDKvs7TNUd6ZivhsXcW1jEjwfKm8-2FuySGWUCtRIRkOtoaqZ8jxB1eEKiUJnIYajKT056-2Br-2FeEAUrorrnzs-3D
https://u32956855.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=VxSvqh1iUMA3PxWQ9jK65-2Fb2LDVOvA4DuaPJnVXcTt-2BYVlLxJ2DHQIQMbp3Z9DDyQMGz5yQr8-2FGy-2FLzJRDN7n5RQfHAIrA39yBTMSXQTvVIr11qjmcH45PCpFBH1ixvuErNacN0uE-2FHSsvfnYcNrmhjWklkgkqolomNIrHfSHh8esdtqSldk9QSglPQInD7wI-2BtXz5qyrIylqoK1qJiktZWc-2B5hkQTGLWZ5T8-2BrJJ4hYh1NbE2dvp27-2FG4-2BgaqDlVnh1I-2FxfmiXsrdtn2oUcdCf0X8PeACfVqocIqymULg4FCiaoshN5IQosOBoakFuHNv1gPZF2KPN1p6-2BAU-2FWlRw-3D-3D4GCf_KVyBcpjXADXifSWVpM8nQY9jv399Yl6G2aMkoVZZrGoAb7IQP3jYVJQs5lsl8GOErYJJzhM8TeZRaENgVZaGF5WXCfvuuNZxvUE8S3MRhO-2FD546DszcOqLfZS8mCGUkS83hjsHobM-2BK-2FXHEShGrzTcoX3q1mo-2FU-2BVJMlz9sIop0rhPYCrBeT5A5t-2BggRWnAat7n3tFKJzNmNLhrp6a0U-2BQVELyxjxYTFcVxfGW-2FGuRY-3D
mailto:Caitlin.Clark2@ontario.ca
mailto:Dakota.Brasier@ontario.ca
https://u32956855.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=VxSvqh1iUMA3PxWQ9jK65-2Fb2LDVOvA4DuaPJnVXcTt-2B8aaViGyMd9PKVL7cw1PrOVrySVUTWIB8nk1ZNiuW9-2B3T7Y-2F5JHOZ0BWTBTyDH2rPHHVhMcxLRwKby1AAkzNzHtyVkK3wIisyMVpcon4keh2r8c6Nw-2BfKYAFT-2FghYrGGHYMD20OfHuOpicwCfdE8sfRtRT-2BFLGnG7YKhH2T8ZKyB7M095LVKKXteIcF0CtkigNikwkq0okkkj3OF6EAv3b8T2F_KVyBcpjXADXifSWVpM8nQY9jv399Yl6G2aMkoVZZrGoAb7IQP3jYVJQs5lsl8GOE1JxGLsmlWljsfL8yhEpX0oQAKRLzsCDJHuLf6Hg-2FAEF8sKaiajb55TiW-2B6m0XnFTzqKKsxTVdMX6QNS9flgTm3-2FZebTdcnAnSswlve8GtJQTW7eFbMlpn-2BNTsr48UjcxuJA0oh8KQ-2F63Pv-2BCtvQctmkRwonq-2F1kbM8-2FE2zpoMX8-3D
https://u32956855.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=VxSvqh1iUMA3PxWQ9jK653KrZm2H7eKf4APy4VWV3O0LVXDGQUI5yztLRiNjahlU8IuBb2pkpdujw4yX-2FIG1zpvkdkV9kRk6mPEya8p3GFCMDMbxMaVeLANt-2FYq-2FheH1n-2FdVJBYh-2B7xvwKeaY6aHg97uLZr3xhygLKK0Mkd4rqdt2BRJJz4bLRfP36jJyFpxBVr8BvkW4QyctcYLQyNlkUeT7pudLgk30uhVS5FgFvFUnSl1-2Be-2BfoBvIMF-2B29FBO6EAHFVf-2FczCtzniPG6cFeNiOGTgtuz6vTWrS3ZEwxzzf14qT5YqtJTv7wKz-2BmrHWCUaU-2BPwF0nWaNlWqQ5VA5BjKQGqcJ00irD697SK6-2FFCVz0KA2IhGwqM2csqw2iFXrUvw_KVyBcpjXADXifSWVpM8nQY9jv399Yl6G2aMkoVZZrGoAb7IQP3jYVJQs5lsl8GOE0f-2F7EiaEkwEvnhuWkZN4DxfGvhvVye9FfQJ6j2Bhb9OT-2B7F11QeUHXG-2FCHNG-2FL66AOxHX2MbToAjH3PNtJvpE761yswPk93p9l5ZnSGutFUkHEj2NqFYeHgX96-2F-2BkgIjtfTreH1DlRmkNgOqKseW4C9astrdyNab9c7y2LUTiC0-3D
https://u32956855.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=VxSvqh1iUMA3PxWQ9jK653KrZm2H7eKf4APy4VWV3O1EnnGPpRWf15wDC2yGLUXD08zOkMgA7M2NsLPgiWKaVCuYsYheWKuTYhQRutwxmPav-2FIXQNvmzSRINHnYKxdldWBADFcqRtvLFAwSrcNxzw9FSXeXSuELEZn6gWzx3kkevoGItyQMKzcBzJXWYpDBMH4aNZ94nesICsLv5p3-2BjW6lQoqpjer2WomUCWuqvu1a-2FPR2DGSWyYM6LvUFbZ1XctweCgf9d4Lsnl092EqlgrpfYpmxtCSkAYmlMcOyQu60po5CtTuP3QyRP7w1bdNK1slaN3Y-2BP3ccaRHGeoiDIzmuw1dY0Y-2BYr50KGFbblEFznIboBiOw6v3wk7llLsBozWqzo_KVyBcpjXADXifSWVpM8nQY9jv399Yl6G2aMkoVZZrGoAb7IQP3jYVJQs5lsl8GOEwJRor8Csmmm6LTQP-2BdH9A97RgvkNM7G40Msko1Uq2T9ifQvHqsTtvj937EPIWiyf4Fr6XhPmX5lzaDk2iFZ5bLylAtUvBwRquOfwf3-2F-2BRuaj5-2F67uMorx4CBGVQxPniGFt0QZFRe-2FwXE94NO1QuaFcIuO1YHJccYKMy0n4abyBo-3D


100 John West Way 
Aurora, OntarioL4G 6J1 
(905) 726 4700 
www.aurora.ca 

Town of Aurora 
Planning and Development Services 

Notice of Adoption Updated Official Plan 

TAKE NOTICE that the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Aurora passed By law No. 6579

24 on the 30th day of January 2024 to adopt an Updated Official Plan under the Planning Act, 

R.S.O. 1990, c.P.13, as amended (the Planning Act). 

TAKE NOTICE that the Updated Official Plan is being submitted to the Regional Municipality of 

York for approval as the upper tier approval authority under section 17 of the Planning Act. As such, 

the Region will provide notice of its final decision regarding the adoption and approval of the 

Updated Official Plan in accordance with the requirements of the Planning Act and O. Reg. 543/06. 

Any person or public body will be entitled to receive notice of the decision of the approval authority 

if a written request to be notified of the decision (including the person’s or public body’s address, 
fax number or email address) is made to the approval authority at: 

The Regional Municipality of York 

Corporate Services Department 

Community Planning and Development Services 

York Region Administrative Centre 

17250 Yonge Street, Newmarket, ON L37 6Z1 

1 877 464 9675 Ext: 71550 

developmentservices@york.ca 

Purpose and Effect 

The purpose and effect of the new Updated Official Plan is to serve as a policy document that 

applies to all lands within the municipal boundary of the Town of Aurora. The Plan was 

established through engagement with Council, members of the public, internal departments, 

external agencies and other key stakeholders, with input informing land use designations and 

policy development for responsible, long term growth management. 

The Updated Official Plan: 

 Outlines the goals, objectives, visions, and policies intended to guide land use and 

development in the Town of Aurora to the horizon year of 2051. 

 Outlines policies to guide and manage physical growth and development within the Town 

of Aurora based on existing and anticipated conditions and forecasts. 

The existing Official Plan for the Town of Aurora was last adopted in 2010. It is being replaced by 

the new Updated Official Plan to account for review requirements under the Planning Act and 

amendments to Provincial planning legislation and policy that must be complied and conformed 

with, including the Planning Act, the Provincial Policy Statement, the Growth Plan for the Greater 

Golden Horseshoe and the Oak Ridges Moraine Conservation Plan. The Updated Official Plan is 

consistent with the required policy statements of the Planning Act, conforms with applicable 

provincial plans, and conforms to the York Region Official Plan. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 65DD049B-02AE-47AC-A59A-29D09FBDBF82

 

   

   

 

 

 

 
    

 
 

   
 

   

    

  

     

       

         

 

         

        

   

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

  

 

 

- -

- - -

26 

-

– 

-

http://www.aurora.ca/
mailto:developmentservices@york.ca


Page 2 

Further Information 

The Updated Official Plan and all supporting information is also available for public inspection 

online at the Town of Aurora website, at Town Hall during regular business hours, or by contacting 

planning@aurora.ca. 

Contact 

Any other inquiries should be directed to: 

Adam Robb, MPL, MCIP, RPP, CAHP 

Manager, Policy Planning and Heritage 

(365) 500 3104 

arobb@aurora.ca 

DATED, this 7th day of February 2024 

Marco Ramunno, MCIP, RPP 

Director of Planning and Development Services 

Town of Aurora 

100 John West Way 

Aurora, ON L4G 6J1 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 65DD049B-02AE-47AC-A59A-29D09FBDBF82

 

 
 

 

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

27 

-

mailto:planning@aurora.ca
mailto:arobb@aurora.ca


                                                                                                                                         

      

 

 

 
  

   
    

 
 

   
     

 
 

 
     

 
     

  
     

    
 

        
  

    
   

  
  

  
    

   
   

  
   

  
  

   
    

  
   

  
  

   
    

  
  

  
  
  

28 

February 8, 2024 
Rural Ontario Municipal Association 
Attn: Board of Directors 
Via email roma@roma.on.ca 

Ontario Good Roads Association 
Attn: Board of Directors 
Via email info@goodroads.ca 

Via email 

RE: return to combined ROMA and OGRA conferences 

Dear ROMA & OGRA Board of Directors, 

During the February 5, 2024 regular meeting of council, council in response to a notice of motion from 
Deputy Mayor Joel Field the following resolution passed: 

MOVED: Bill Clark SECONDED: Chad Hyatt 

WHEREAS as a past attendee of combined conferences, it makes great sense for the OGRA & ROMA 
conferences to be returned to a combined conference effort, not only financially for the municipality but 
also for availability for participation of members of Council and staff; and 
WHEREAS these conferences afford a vital opportunity for delegations with members of our provincial 
parliament, returning to a combined conference provides a better respect to their availability and 
participation; and 

WHEREAS during the 2019 OGRA conference AGM a resolution was passed regarding the re-
establishment of an annual combined conference for both OGRA & ROMA; and 

WHEREAS it is understandable that little movement has happened since the resolution at the 2019 
OGRA conference AGM was passed, due to delays of the COVID-19 pandemic; and 

WHEREAS not all persons who wish to attend can do so in person, that a hybrid participation option be 
considered for the sessions; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the Town of Petrolia call upon both the ROMA & 
OGRA boards to re-establish a combined OGRA & ROMA annual conference. 

FURTHERMORE that this resolution be forwarded to Premier Doug Ford, Minister Paul Calandra, MPP 
Bob Bailey and be circulated to Municipalities of Ontario; as amended 

Carried 

Phone: (519)882-2350   Fax: (519)882-3373 Theatre: (800)717-7694 

411 Greenfield Street, Petrolia, ON, N0N 1R0 

www.town.petrolia.on.ca 

mailto:roma@roma.on.ca
mailto:info@goodroads.ca


                                                                                                                                         

      

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

  

    
   

   
  

29 

Kind regards, 

Original Signed 
Mandi Pearson 
Clerk/Operations Clerk 

cc: 

Premier Doug Ford premier@ontario.ca 
Hon. Paul Calandra Paul.Calandra@pc.ola.org 
MPP Bob Bailey, Sarnia-Lambton bob.bailey@pc.ola.org 
Ontario Municipalities 

Phone: (519)882-2350   Fax: (519)882-3373 Theatre: (800)717-7694 

411 Greenfield Street, Petrolia, ON, N0N 1R0 

www.town.petrolia.on.ca 

mailto:premier@ontario.ca
mailto:Paul.Calandra@pc.ola.org
mailto:bob.bailey@pc.ola.org
www.town.petrolia.on.ca


30 



31 



32 



33 



 
 
 

   
 

 
 

  
  

 
 

     
   

 
  

   
 

    
  

            
 

  
           

  
 

 
 

         
         
        

        
         

 
        

      
       
          

         
       

  
            

      
  

   

 

 

       
   

 
 

  
 

      
  

   

34 

www.springwater.ca 
2231 Nursery Road 

Minesing, Ontario 
L9X 1A8 Canada 

The Honourable Doug Ford Sent via Email 
Premier of Ontario 
premier@ontario.ca 

February 9, 2024 

Dear Premier Ford: 

RE: Amendment to the Occupational Health and Safety Act to Clarify the Definition of 
‘Employer’ 

At its Regular meeting on February 7, 2024, Council of the Township of Springwater passed the 
following resolution: 

C56-2024 

That Council for the Township of Springwater endorse the resolution from the City of 
Greater Sudbury, and recognize resolutions from other Ontario municipalities such as the 
Town of Plympton-Wyoming, petitioning the province to amend the Occupational Health 
and Safety Act to clarify the definition of “employer” to exclude owners that have 
contracted with a constructor for a project ; and, 

That the resolution be sent to the Honourable Doug Ford, Premier of Ontario, the 
Honourable David Piccini, Minister of Labour, Immigration, Training and Skills 
Development, the Honourable Paul Calandra, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing, 
Doug Downey, Attorney General of Ontario and MPP for Barrie – Springwater - Oro-
Medonte, the Association of Municipalities of Ontario, the Council of Ontario Construction 
Associations, the Ontario Chamber of Commerce and all Ontario municipalities. 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact us via email at 
clerks@springwater.ca or by phone at 705-728-4784. 

Regards, 

C. Sarah A. Elliott, B.A., Dipl. M.A., 
Committee Coordinator/Administrative Assistant 

cc: 
Honourable David Piccini, Minister of Labour, Immigration, Training and Skills Development; 
Honourable Paul Calandra, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing; 
Doug Downey, Attorney General of Ontario and MPP for Barrie – Springwater - Oro-Medonte; 
The Association of Municipalities of Ontario; The Council of Ontario Construction Associations; The 
Ontario Chamber of Commerce and all Ontario municipalities. 

Phone: 705-728-4784 Clerk’s Department Fax: 705-728-6957 
Ext. 2060 

http://www.springwater.ca/
mailto:clerks@springwater.ca
mailto:premier@ontario.ca


 
              

 
 
 

  
 

  
  

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

       
   

   
 

 
 

   
  

    
  

 
 

      
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
 

        
        
      
     
  
      
   
    

   

35 

The Honourable Doug Ford 
Premier of Ontario 
premier@ontario.ca 
DELIVERED VIA EMAIL 

January 15th 2024 

Re: Amendment to the Occupational Health and Safety Act to Clarify the Definition of 

‘Employer’ 

Dear Premier Ford, 

Please be advised that at the Regular Council Meeting on January 10th 2024, the Town of Plympton-
Wyoming Council passed the following motion, supporting the resolution from the City of Greater 
Sudbury re. Amendment to the Occupational Health & Safety Act to Clarify the Definition of 
‘Employer’. 

Motion 14 
Moved by Councillor Bob Woolvett 
Seconded by Councillor Kristen Rodrigues 
That Council support item ‘L’ of correspondence from the City of Greater Sudbury re. Amendment to 
the Occupational Health & Safety Act to Clarify the Definition of ‘Employer’. 

Carried. 

If you have any questions regarding the above motion, please do not hesitate to contact me by phone 
or email at ekwarciak@plympton-wyoming.ca. 

Sincerely, 

Erin Kwarciak 
Clerk 
Town of Plympton-Wyoming 

cc: Honourable David Piccini, Minister of Labour, Immigration, Training and Skills Development 
Honourable Paul Calandra, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing 
Bob Bailey, MPP – Sarnia-Lambton 
Association of Municipal Affairs and Housing 
Ontario’s Big City Mayors 
Mayors and Regional Chairs of Ontario 
Council of Ontario Construction Associations 
Ontario Chamber of Commerce 
All Ontario Municipalities 

546 Niagara Street, P.O Box 250 | Wyoming ON, N0N 1T0 | 519-845-3939 | www.plympton-wyoming.com 

mailto:premier@ontario.ca
mailto:ekwarciak@plympton-wyoming.ca
www.plympton-wyoming.com


    
   

     

  

  
  

     
   

  

 
  

 

             

              
  

           
           
            

           
             

    

            
     

             
   

             
                 

           
             

            
             

   

           
               

           
              

             
             

             
              

       
           
          

City ofGreater Sudbury
Ville du Grand Sudbury

/Jr / PT Greater GrandSodbury

December 12, 2023

Municipalities of Ontario
*Sent Via Email*

PO BOX 5000 SIN A
200 BRADY STREET
SUDBURY ON P3A5P3

CP5000SUCCA
200, RUE BRADY
SUDBURYON P3A5P3

705.671.2489

www.greatersudbuiy.ca
www.grandsudbury.ca

Re: Amendment to the Occupational Health and Safety Act to Clarify the Definition of 
“Employer”

The following resolution was passed by Council of the City of Greater Sudbury on
December 5, 2023:

CC2023-303: WHEREAS in 2015 the City of Greater Sudbury (the "City”)
entered into a contract with a contractor experienced in road construction
projects to complete a project on Elgin Street in the City’s downtown core;

AND WHEREAS the contract provided that the contractor would be the
constructor for the project as that term is defined in the Occupational Health
and Safety Act (the "Act”);

AND WHEREAS an employee of the constructor operating a grader on the
project struck and killed a pedestrian;

AND WHEREAS the City was charged with offences under the Act as the
constructor and the employer;

AND WHEREAS after being acquitted at trial and on appeal, the Ontario Court
ofAppeal, in a decision issued on April 23, 2021, found the City to be liable for
contraventions of the Construction Regulations as an employer as it employed
quality control inspectors to monitor the quality of work on the project from
time-to-time;

AND WHEREAS the Supreme Court of Canada, in a decision issued on
November 10, 2023, was evenly divided 4-4 on the issue resulting in dismissal
of the City’s appeal;

AND WHEREAS the consequence of this decision is that municipalities in
Ontario, as well as all other owners ofproperty in the province, who wish to
undertake construction, are subject to being charged and convicted as an
employer for offences in relation to project sites for which they have no control
and have, in accordance with the Act, contracted with an entity to assume
plenary oversight and authority over the work on such site as the constructor;
AND WHEREAS the potential of an owner being charged as an employer as
that term is defined in the Act in circumstances where it has engaged a
constructor disregards and renders meaningless the owner-constructor
provisions contained in the Act and presents an unacceptable level of
increased risk and confusion for owners and contractors throughout the
province;

36 

http://www.greatersudbuiy.ca
http://www.grandsudbury.ca


            
            

               
         

            
          

             
       

            
          

         
          

            
          

           
         

         

 

 
     

   
     

AND WHEREAS the City believes that the safety of workers is paramount
however the safety of workers on construction projects in Ontario is not
increased by placing liability on parties that do not have control of and are not
responsible for the conduct of the work on such sites;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council for the City of
Greater Sudbury requests that the province amend the Occupational Health
and Safety Act to clarify the definition of “employer"’ to exclude owners that
have contracted with a constructor for a project;

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT this motion be provided to the
Honourable Doug Ford, Premier of Ontario, the Honourable David Piccini,
Minister of Labour, Immigration, Training and Skills Development, the
Honourable Paul Calandra, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing, France
Gelinas, MPP for Nickel Belt, Jamie West, MPP for Sudbury, the Association
of Municipalities of Ontario, the Federation of Northern Ontario Municipalities,
Ontario's Big City Mayors, Mayors and Regional Chairs of Ontario, Northern
Ontario Large Urban Mayors, the Council of Ontario Construction
Associations, the Ontario Chamber of Commerce and all Ontario
municipalities.

Yours truly,

Brigitte Sobush
Manager of Clerk’s Services/Deputy City Clerk

c. Members of City Council
Eric Labelle, City Solicitor and Clerk

37 



 

 

 
 

    

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
     

 

 
 

  
 

         
      

 
 

               

 
   

 
 

   
  

  
 
                 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

38 

February 14th, 2024 

Premier's Office 
Room 281 
Legislative Building, Queen's Park 
Toronto, ON M7A 1A1 

ATTENTION: Premier of Ontario 

Dear Premier Ford: 

RE: Resolution – Conservation Officer Reclassification 

Please be advised that the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Lanark 
Highlands passed the following resolution at their regular meeting held January 23rd, 
2024: 

Moved by Councillor Roberts Seconded by Councillor Summers 

THAT, Council supports the resolution from Coleman Township regarding Conservation 
Officer Reclassification; 

AND THAT, this resolution of support be circulated to the Premiere of Ontario, the 
Minister of Natural Resources Graydon Smith, local Members of Parliament and all 
Ontario Municipalities. 

Resolved 
Sincerely, 

Amanda Noël, 
Clerk/Acting CAO 

Encls. 

c.c. Minister of Natural Resources, Graydon Smith 
Local MP’s and MPP’s 
Association of Municipalities 
All Ontario Municipalities 

PO Box 340, 75 George Street, Lanark, ON, K0G 1K0 
T: 613-259-2398  TF: 800-239-4695   F: 613-259-2291 W: lanarkhighlands.ca 

https://lanarkhighlands.ca


39 



 

 

 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
  

 
  

     
 

    
 

         
    

 
  

 
 

  
  

 
 

  
  

 
  

 
 

 
  

VIA: Email 

40 

The Honourable Doug Ford 
Premier of Ontario 
premier@ontario.ca 

The Honourable Todd Smith, M.P.P 
Minister of Energy 
Todd.Smithco@pc.ola.org 

The Honourable Peter Bethlenfalvy, M.P.P 
Minister of Finance 
Peter.Bethlenfalvy@pc.ola.org 

Colin Best 
President of Association of Municipalities of Ontario 
amopresident@amo.on.ca 

February 14, 2024 

Subject: Support for the Decision of the Ontario Energy Board to End the Gas 
Pipeline Subsidy 

Dear Premier Ford, Ministers Smith and Bethlenfalvy, and President Best, 

City Council, at its meeting held on February 14, 2024, passed the following resolution in 
support for the decision of the Ontario Energy Board to end the Gas Pipeline Subsidy: 

WHEREAS, residents are struggling with energy bill increases and need relief; 

WHEREAS, natural gas is no longer the cheapest way to heat homes because 
electric heat pumps are now much more efficient, can provide all heating needs 
even in the cold climates, and result in far lower energy bills over the long term 
compared to gas heating; 

WHEREAS, natural gas is methane gas, which is a fossil fuel that causes 
approximately one-third of Ontario's GHG emissions, and must be phased out 
because it is inconsistent with all climate targets, while heat pumps result in the 
lowest GHG emissions and are consistent with a zero-carbon future; 

WHEREAS, the Ontario Energy Board (“OEB”) decided to end a subsidy for 
methane gas pipelines to be built in new construction developments, effective 2025, 
finding that this would lower energy bills for existing gas customers and improve 

mailto:premier@ontario.ca
mailto:Todd.Smithco@pc.ola.org
mailto:Peter.Bethlenfalvy@pc.ola.org
mailto:amopresident@amo.on.ca


 
  

 
 

 
 

   

  
    

  
 

 
    

 
 

   
   

 
 

   
   

   
  

    
 

 
  

 
  

 
   

 
   

 

  
 

 

 
 

 
  

 

41 

affordability for new homebuyers, but this decision is at risk of being overturned by 
the provincial government; 

WHEREAS, the OEB decision will help lower energy bills and encourage heating 
systems that are consistent with climate targets and plans; 

WHEREAS, the construction of new methane gas pipelines, which have 60-year 
lifetimes, should not be subsidized because they are inconsistent with the City’s 
climate targets and will result in higher carbon emissions, higher energy bills, higher 
future decarbonization retrofit costs to get off fossil fuel heating, and a continued 
financial drain as dollars leave the province to pay for fossil fuels extracted in other 
jurisdictions; 

WHEREAS, Hamilton City Council declared a climate emergency in 2019; 

WHEREAS, transforming our buildings by supporting actions that improve the 
energy efficiency and GHG profile of new buildings within the City is one of 5 low-
carbon transformations from ReCharge Hamilton, the City’s Community Energy and 
Emissions Plan (CEEP); and 

WHEREAS, the City of Hamilton is actively working to support the decarbonization 
of heating and cooling systems in existing and future building stock within the 
community, as demonstrated by the Better Homes Hamilton Home Energy Retrofit 
Pilot Program, which will provide 0% interest loans to up to 50 Hamilton 
homeowners to enable them to transition away from fossil-fuel powered heating and 
cooling equipment to low carbon air or ground source heat pump systems. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

(a) That the City of Hamilton expresses its support for the decision of the Ontario 
Energy Board to end the gas pipeline subsidy and requests that the Ontario 
Government allow the decision to stand; and 

(b) That this resolution be circulated to the President of Association of Municipalities 
of Ontario, Colin Best; Premier of Ontario, Doug Ford; Minister of Energy, Todd 
Smith; Minister of Finance, Peter Bethlenfalvy and all Ontario Municipalities 
requesting support for the proposed changes. 

Sincerely, 

Andrea Horwath 
Mayor 
CC: All Ontario Municipalities (by email) 



                

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 
 

    
 

 

 
  

 

   

42 

The Right Honourable Justin Trudeau 

Prime Minister of Canada 

80 Wellington Street 

Ottawa, ON K1A 0A2 

Justin.trudeau@parl.gc.ca 

(sent via e-mail) 

February 15th, 2024 

Re: Carbon Tax 

Please be advised that the Council of the Town of Plympton-Wyoming, at its meeting on February 
14th, 2024, passed the following motion supporting the resolution from the City of Sarnia regarding 
Carbon Tax. 

Motion #12 
Moved by Councillor John van Klaveren 
Seconded by Councillor Mike Vasey 
That Council support correspondence item ‘o’ from the City of Sarnia regarding Carbon Tax. 

Carried. 

If you have any questions regarding the above motion, please do not hesitate to contact me by phone 
or email at eflynn@plympton-wyoming.ca. 

Sincerely, 

Ella Flynn 
Executive Assistant – Deputy Clerk 
Town of Plympton-Wyoming 

Cc: All Ontario municipalities 

546 Niagara Street, PO Box 250 | Wyoming, ON, N0N 1T0 | 519-845-3939 | www.plympton-wyoming.com 

mailto:Justin.trudeau@parl.gc.ca
mailto:eflynn@plympton-wyoming.ca
www.plympton-wyoming.com


 
 

 

  
 

   
 

    
 

   

 

 

 
 

 
  

 
  

 
 

  

 

        
 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 

 

43 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF SARNIA 
City Clerk’s Department 
255 Christina Street N. PO Box 3018 
Sarnia ON  Canada  N7T 7N2 

519-332-0330 (phone) 519-332-3995 (fax) 
519-332-2664 (TTY) 

www.sarnia.ca clerks@sarnia.ca 

January 19, 2024 

The Right Honourable Justin Trudeau 

Prime Minister of Canada 
80 Wellington Street 

Ottawa, ON K1A 0A2 
Justin.trudeau@parl.gc.ca 

Dear Prime Minister: 

Re: Carbon Tax 

At its meeting held on January 15, 2024, Sarnia City Council adopted the 
following resolution: 

Whereas the federal government recently increased the carbon tax 
in April 2023 and will almost triple it by 2030; and 

Whereas the Parliamentary Budget officer has admitted that when 

fiscal and economic impacts of the federal fuel charge are 
considered that the vast majority of households will see a 

staggering loss; and 

Whereas this tax flows through from producers to transporters to 
the grocery store floor for our citizens; and 

Whereas this tax does very little to reduce pollution and emissions; 

and 

Whereas two thirds of Canadians are approximately $200 away or 

less from not being able to pay all their bills at the end of the 
month; and 

Therefore, be it resolved that Sarnia City Council write a Letter to 

the Federal government (and copied to other Municipalities for their 
consideration) strongly urging them to cancel the 

carbon tax which is financially hurting our citizens at a time 

http://www.sarnia.ca/
mailto:Justin.trudeau@parl.gc.ca
mailto:clerks@sarnia.ca


 
 

 
    

 
  

 
 

 
 

  
 

44 

when affordability concerns are at an all-time high to ease the 
financial and inflationary pressure on our Citizens. 

Your consideration of this request is respectfully requested. 

Yours Sincerely, 

Amy Burkhart 

City Clerk 

cc: All Ontario Municipalities 



 
   

  
 

 

   

         

  

   
 

   
 

 

     
  

 

   
    

 
    

  

  

  
 

 
 

  
   

 

 
  

    
  
  

 
 

45 

Extracts from Council Meeting 
C#03-24 held February 14, 2024 

Confirmatory By-law 33-24 

15. Committee and Staff Reports 

15.1 Minutes - Committee of the Whole Meeting CW#02-24 held February 
7, 2024 

That the minutes of Committee of the Whole meeting CW#02-24 held 
February 7, 2024, be adopted as circulated and the following 
recommendations be approved: 

15.1.4 Member Motion - Mayor West - Association of Municipalities of 
Ontario: Provincial-Municipal Fiscal Service Delivery Review -
(CW Item 12.1) 

Moved by: Regional and Local Councillor DiPaola 
Seconded by: Councillor Cilevitz 

Whereas current provincial-municipal fiscal arrangements are 
undermining Ontario’s economic prosperity and quality of life; 

Whereas nearly a third of municipal spending in Ontario is for 
services in areas of provincial responsibility and expenditures are 
outpacing provincial contributions by nearly $4 billion a year; 

Whereas municipal revenues, such as property taxes, do not grow 
with the economy or inflation; 

Whereas unprecedented population and housing growth will require 
significant investments in municipal infrastructure; 

Whereas municipalities are being asked to take on complex health 
and social challenges – like homelessness, supporting asylum 
seekers and addressing the mental health and addictions crises; 

Whereas inflation, rising interest rates, and provincial policy 
decisions are sharply constraining municipal fiscal capacity; 

Whereas property taxpayers – including people on fixed incomes 
and small businesses – can’t afford to subsidize income re-
distribution programs for those most in need; 

Whereas the province can, and should, invest more in the 
prosperity of communities; 

For Your Information and Any Action Deemed Necessary 

225 East Beaver Creek Road, Richmond Hill, Ontario L4B 3P4 905-771-8800  RichmondHill.ca 

https://RichmondHill.ca


 
   

  
 

 

   

         

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

   
  

  
   

   

 

 

46 

Extracts from Council Meeting 
C#03-24 held February 14, 2024 

Confirmatory By-law 33-24 

Whereas municipalities and the provincial government have a 
strong history of collaboration; 

Therefore, Be It Resolved that Council for the City of Richmond Hill 
requests that the Province of Ontario commit to undertaking with 
the Association of Municipalities of Ontario a comprehensive social 
and economic prosperity review to promote the stability and 
sustainability of municipal finances across Ontario (refer to 
Attachments 1, 2 and 3); 

Therefore, Be It Further Resolved that the City Clerk send this 
motion to Premier of Ontario; the Ontario Minister of Municipal 
Affairs and Housing; the Ontario Leader of Opposition, and Leaders 
of other Parties, the Local Members of Parliament (MPs); the Local 
Members of Provincial Parliament (MPPs); the Association of 
Municipalities of Ontario (AMO); Ontario Big Cities Mayors Caucus 
(OBCM); Mayors and Regional Chairs of Ontario (MARCO); the 
Large Urban Mayors’ Caucus of Ontario; the Small Urban GTHA 
Mayors as well as York Region and its member municipalities. 

Carried 

For Your Information and Any Action Deemed Necessary 

225 East Beaver Creek Road, Richmond Hill, Ontario L4B 3P4 905-771-8800  RichmondHill.ca 

https://RichmondHill.ca


    
  

  
    

   

   

  

   

  

    

    

 

 

 

  

  

            

              

*Disclaimer: The Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) is unable to provide any warranty regarding the accuracy or completeness of third-party submissions. Distribution of these 
items does not imply an endorsement of the views, information or services mentioned. 

47 Member Motion - Attachment 1 

From: AMO - Policy Update <communicate@amo.on.ca> 
Sent: January 10, 2024 1:14 PM 
To: Raynor, Christopher <Christopher.Raynor@york.ca> 
Subject: AMO Policy Update - Social and Economic Prosperity Review 

Policy Update – Social and Economic Prosperity Review 

Yesterday, AMO presented to the Standing Committee on Finance and Economic 

Affairs outlining our recommendations for the provincial 2024 budget. AMO highlighted 

how the current provincial-municipal fiscal arrangements are undermining the social 

and economic prosperity of Ontario. We are asking the provincial government to sit 

down with municipalities and work together on a social and economic prosperity review: 

a joint review of revenues, costs and financial risks and a detailed analysis of Ontario’s 

infrastructure investment and service delivery needs. 

We need your help. 

Municipal councils are encouraged to support AMO’s ongoing advocacy efforts by: 

 Highlighting the challenges municipalities are facing and the need for this review 

during delegations at the upcoming ROMA conference in January, meetings with 

local MPPs, and your communities, using key messages included in AMO's pre-

budget backgrounder 

 Passing a council resolution at your next meeting, calling on the province to 

commit to this review in its upcoming provincial budget 

 Sharing your support with local media channels using our news release 

template 

 Meeting with or writing to local MPPs (sample wording) in advance of provincial 

budget 

*Disclaimer: The Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) is unable to provide any warranty regarding the accuracy or completeness 

of third-party submissions. Distribution of these items does not imply an endorsement of the views, information or services mentioned. 

mailto:communicate@amo.on.ca
mailto:christopher.raynor@york.ca
https://www.amo.on.ca/sites/default/files/assets/DOCUMENTS/Pre-Budget%20Submissions/2024/AMOPre-BudgetSubmissionBackgrounder2024-01-09.pdf
https://www.amo.on.ca/sites/default/files/assets/DOCUMENTS/Pre-Budget%20Submissions/2024/AMOPre-BudgetSubmissionBackgrounder2024-01-09.pdf
https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.amo.on.ca%2Fsites%2Fdefault%2Ffiles%2Fassets%2FDOCUMENTS%2FPre-Budget%2520Submissions%2F2024%2FMemberToolkit-DraftResolution(LJ).docx&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK
https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.amo.on.ca%2Fsites%2Fdefault%2Ffiles%2Fassets%2FDOCUMENTS%2FPre-Budget%2520Submissions%2F2024%2F2024MemberToolkit-MPPLetterv2.docx&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK


     

 

 

 

     

     

  

    

        

  

       

         

             

        

  

 
 

         

          

          

         

         

    

 
  

         

        

          

        

         

            

      

           

       

48 Member Motion - Attachment 2 

Office of the Commissioner 

Finance 

Memorandum 

FOR INFORMATION 

To: Regional Council 

Meeting Date: January 25, 2024 

From: Laura Mirabella 

Commissioner of Finance and Regional Treasurer 

Re: Association of Ontario Municipalities of Ontario Resolution – Social and 

Economic Prosperity Review 

This memo provides information on the draft resolution provided by the Association of 

Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) included on today’s Council meeting agenda as item G.1. As 

discussed at the January 11, 2024 meeting of the Committee of the Whole, AMO has called for 

municipalities to pass a resolution advocating for a review of current fiscal arrangements with 

the Province. 

AMO is advocating for a Provincial-Municipal Social and Economic Prosperity 
Review 

On January 9, 2024, AMO presented to the Provincial Standing Committee on Finance and 

Economic Affairs the challenges municipalities face, as municipal revenues, primarily reliant on 

property taxes, do not keep pace with the economy or inflation. Moreover, provincial grants, 

such as the Ontario Municipal Partnership Fund, lack necessary inflation adjustments. AMO 

highlighted the need for Provincial commitment to a Provincial-Municipal fiscal review, which 

was last held in 2008. 

Last service delivery review took place in 2008 and its recommendations were fully 
implemented by 2018 

In 2008, the Province signed the Provincial-Municipal Fiscal Service Delivery Review 

(PMFSDR) Agreement with municipalities, shifting the burden of certain service costs from the 

municipal property tax base. By 2018, the Province fully implemented PMFSDR’s 

recommendations, including uploading social assistance benefit costs and court security and 

prisoner transportation costs. The estimated total benefit was $70 million in tax levy savings, 

equivalent to 4% of total Regional and local municipal property tax revenue in 2018. 

Despite the uploads and associated tax savings, municipalities continue to spend more than 

they receive in other areas falling under Provincial responsibility, such as social housing, long-

term care, land ambulance, social services, and child care, due to existing cost-sharing 

https://www.amo.on.ca/sites/default/files/assets/DOCUMENTS/Pre-Budget%20Submissions/2024/EDRemarks-StandingCommitteeonFinanceandEconomicAffairsonPre-BudgetSubmission2024-01-09largefont.pdf
https://www.amo.on.ca/sites/default/files/assets/DOCUMENTS/Pre-Budget%20Submissions/2024/AMOPre-BudgetSubmissionBackgrounder2024-01-09.pdf


 

         

    

 
 

               

        

          

       

          

  

           

           

           

         

              

   

 

            

          

  

 

 

 

 

     

 

 
 

 

 

 

   

 

49 

arrangements. AMO has calculated that municipalities expended $3.8 billion more in 2022 than 

they received in these areas. 

Region has financial risks due to uncertainty regarding Provincial decisions related 
to cost-sharing, policy shifts, and eligibility changes 

As presented at the tabling of the 2024 to 2026 Regional Budget on November 23, 2023, each 

year the Region encounters uncertainty regarding funding it receives from senior government 

for provincially mandated programs. Funding from senior government constitutes 23% of overall 

Regional revenue. Many programs, particularly those in Community and Health Services, 

depend heavily on Provincial cost-sharing announcements, grants, and subsidy programs. 

AMO is asking municipalities to support its advocacy efforts for a Social and 
Economic Prosperity Review as part of the 2024 Provincial Budget 

The AMO resolution calls on the Province to undertake a review as part of the upcoming 

budget, with the aim of developing a consensus report with recommendations by 2025. The 

AMO resolution aligns with recent advocacy efforts, including the November 23, 2023 

Resolution for Funding to Support Infrastructure Required to Meet Provincial Housing Targets 

and the 2024 Ontario Budget Consultation report presented at the January 11, 2024 Committee 

of the Whole meeting. 

For more information on this memo, please contact Ed Hankins, Director, Treasury Office and 

Deputy Treasurer at 1-877-464-9675 ext. 71644. Accessible formats or communication supports 

are available upon request. 

Laura Mirabella 

Commissioner of Finance and Regional Treasurer 

Erin Mahoney 

Chief Administrative Officer 

January 18, 2024 

# 13660530 

https://www.amo.on.ca/sites/default/files/assets/DOCUMENTS/Policy-Updates/2023/2023-10-17/AMOProsperityReviewDeck10-17-2023.pdf
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/Meeting.aspx?Id=b9c4a593-fc1e-4011-9801-646595b94562&Agenda=Merged&lang=English&Item=18&Tab=attachments
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/Meeting.aspx?Id=b9c4a593-fc1e-4011-9801-646595b94562&Agenda=PostMinutes&lang=English&Item=24&Tab=attachments
https://yorkpublishing.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=42181


 

Member Motion - Attachment 3 

December 2023 

AMO SOCIAL AND 
ECONOMIC PROSPERITY 
REVIEW 

50 



       
   

        
       

         
      

          
      

51 

SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC PROSPERITY REVIEW 
• Current provincial-municipal fiscal arrangements are failing our residents, our small 

businesses and our major industries. 
• Municipalities are facing increasingly complex challenges, such as tackling 

homelessness and climate change, without the financial tools to solve them. 
• Current cost-sharing arrangements mean that about $4 billion a year of municipal 

property tax revenues go towards subsidizing provincial health and social services 
responsibilities. 

• These arrangements make it impossible for municipalities to invest in the infrastructure 
needed to support housing and economic growth. 

3 



           
        

        
   

             
      
         

    

            
            

    

        
  

52 

SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC PROSPERITY REVIEW 
• Last adjusted in 2008, a review of provincial-municipal financial arrangements is long overdue. 

• Municipalities can no longer afford to subsidize the provincial treasury. 
• Property taxpayers – including small businesses and seniors on fixed incomes – can’t afford to 

fix Ontario’s fraying social safety net. 
• The City of Toronto New Deal acknowledges that current arrangements aren’t working and that 

the downloading of the 1990s is unsustainable. 
• The province can, and should, invest more in Ontario’s prosperity 

• Taxpayers expect governments to work together to solve problems. 

• AMO is asking the Government of Ontario to sit down with municipalities and work together on a 
social and economic prosperity review: a joint review of revenues, costs and financial risks and a 
detailed analysis of Ontario’s infrastructure investment and service delivery needs. 

• Let’s work together to create a new fiscal framework that builds the strong and prosperous communities that 
are the foundation of Ontario’s economy. 

4 



 
       

        
 

 
   

53 

THE MUNICIPAL FISCAL CONTEXT 
Municipalities in Ontario delivered $54 billion in services in 2022. 
Services that typically fall under provincial jurisdiction in other provinces 
comprised 29.3%. 

Municipal 
$38.0 billion 

70.7% 

Provincial 
$15.8 billion 
29.3% 

MMAH, 2019-2022 Financial Information Returns. 
2022’s expenditures were imputed for 213 municipalities using the latest available data. 

https://efis.fma.csc.gov.on.ca/fir/Welcome.htm


           
       

  
     

   

54 

THE CHALLENGE 
Municipalities invested $16 billion in services that typically fall under provincial jurisdiction in 
other provinces. Provincial contributions offset these costs – but only in part. 

In 2022, almost $4 Billion 
municipal property tax dollars went 
towards subsidizing the provincial 
treasury. 



    
   

   
 

  
   

  
   

  
   

  
     

 

55 

WORKING TOGETHER 
Ontario’s provincial and municipal governments have a strong history of collaboration 
• COVID collaboration saved lives and stabilized the economy 
• 2008 Provincial-Municipal Fiscal and Service Delivery Review and Upload Agreement re-balanced roles, 

responsibilities and finances and enabled increased municipal investments in capital 

A Social and Economic Prosperity Review 
• Update the provincial-municipal partnership to build sustainable communities, a solid foundation for 

economic growth and quality of life: 
• Affordability and fiscal sustainability for both orders of government 
• Fairness for taxpayers and affordability for residents 
• Coordinated and timely infrastructure investment resilient to climate realities 
• Increased housing supply and affordability 
• Robust health and social services supporting increased economic participation 
• Long term economic development and prosperity for Ontario and its communities 

Modern, effective and streamlined service delivery • 
7 



56 



57 



58 



59 



60 



61 



62 



63 



64 



65 



66 



 
 

 
 

    
  
 

  
  

  
 
 

 

    

  

        

 

          

      

         

         

   

     

  

 

 

 

 

 

67 

Emily Thomas-Hopkins
Legislative Coordinator 
Town of Newmarket 
395 Mulock Drive 
P.O. Box 328 Station Main 
Newmarket, ON   L3Y 4X7 
Email: ethomashopkins@newmarket.ca 
Tel: 905-953-5300 x2210 
Fax:  905-953-5100 

February 7, 2024 

Sent to: vicepresident@angelmancanada.org 

Dear Gina Ciampa: 

RE: Lighting Request – February 15, 2024 – International Angelman Syndrome Day 

I am writing to advise that your lighting request has been approved in accordance with the Council-

approved Proclamation, Lighting Request and Community Flag Raising Policy, and the Fred A. 

Lundy Bridge located on Water Street will be illuminated in blue on February 15, 2024 to recognize 

International Angelman Syndrome Day. Please note that the lighting will occur from sunset until 

11:00 PM. 

If you have any questions regarding the above, please feel free to contact the undersigned. 

Yours sincerely, 

Emily Thomas-Hopkins 

Legislative Coordinator 

mailto:vicepresident@angelmancanada.org
https://www.newmarket.ca/TownGovernment/Documents/Proclamation%20Lighting%20and%20Community%20Flag%20Raising%20Policy_V004.pdf
mailto:ethomashopkins@newmarket.ca


 

                        
    

          

 
 

 

  

  

 
       

 
  

       

    

 
    

 
 

  
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

68 

February 7, 2024 

Sent to: 

Dear Lauren Pires: 

RE: Lighting Request – February 29, 2024 – Rare Disease Day 

On behalf of the Town of Newmarket Council I am pleased to recognize Rare Disease 

Day by illuminating the Fred A. Lundy Bridge on Water Street in blue on February 29, 

2024 from sunset until 11:00 PM. 

Thank you for submitting your request and for your contributions to the community. 

Yours sincerely, 

John Taylor 
Mayor 

Office of the Mayor I Town of Newmarket I 395 Mulock Drive I PO Box 328 STN Main I Newmarket, 
ON I L3Y 4X7 

Phone. 905-953-5300 x.2000 I Fax. 905-953-5102 I Email: jtaylor@newmarket.ca 

mailto:jtaylor@newmarket.ca


 
 

 
 

    
  
 

  
  

  
 
 

 

    

  

       

 

          

      

          

    

     

  

 

 

 

 

 

69 

Emily Thomas-Hopkins
Legislative Coordinator 
Town of Newmarket 
395 Mulock Drive 
P.O. Box 328 Station Main 
Newmarket, ON   L3Y 4X7 
Email: ethomashopkins@newmarket.ca 
Tel: 905-953-5300 x2210 
Fax:  905-953-5100 

February 7, 2024 

Sent to: 

Dear Lauren Pires, 

RE: Lighting Request – February 29, 2024 – Rare Disease Day 

I am writing to advise that your lighting request has been approved in accordance with the Council-

approved Proclamation, Lighting Request and Community Flag Raising Policy, and the Fred A. 

Lundy Bridge located on Water Street will be illuminated in blue on February 29, 2024 to recognize 

Rare Disease Day. Please note that the lighting will occur from sunset until 11:00 PM. 

If you have any questions regarding the above, please feel free to contact the undersigned. 

Yours sincerely, 

Emily Thomas-Hopkins 

Legislative Coordinator 

mailto:ethomashopkins@newmarket.ca


 

                        
    

          

 
  

 

  

  

 
         

 
    

  

 
    

 
 

  
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

70 

February 16, 2024 

Sent to: 

Dear Andrea Peterson: 

RE: Proclamation Request – March 1 – 31, 2024 – March is Easter Seals Month 

On behalf of the Town of Newmarket Council I am pleased to recognize March 1 – 31, 

2024 as March is Easter Seals Month. 

Thank you for submitting your request and for your contributions to the community. 

Yours sincerely, 

John Taylor 
Mayor 

Office of the Mayor I Town of Newmarket I 395 Mulock Drive I PO Box 328 STN Main I Newmarket, 
ON I L3Y 4X7 

Phone. 905-953-5300 x.2000 I Fax. 905-953-5102 I Email: jtaylor@newmarket.ca 

mailto:jtaylor@newmarket.ca


 
 

 
 

    
  
 

  
  

  
 
 

 

   

  

          

 

          

      

      

  

  

   

     

  

 

 

 

 

 

71 

Emily Thomas-Hopkins
Legislative Coordinator 
Town of Newmarket 
395 Mulock Drive 
P.O. Box 328 Station Main 
Newmarket, ON   L3Y 4X7 
Email: ethomashopkins@newmarket.ca 
Tel: 905-953-5300 x2210 
Fax:  905-953-5100 

February 16, 2024 

Sent to: 

Dear Andrea Peterson: 

RE: Proclamation Request – March 1 – 31, 2024 – March is Easter Seals Month 

I am writing to advise that your proclamation request has been approved in accordance with the 

Council-approved Proclamation, Lighting Request and Community Flag Raising Policy, and the 

Town of Newmarket will proclaim March 1 – 31, 2024 as March is Easter Seals Month. Approved 

proclamations, lighting requests, and community flag raisings will be listed on the Town’s website. 

Approved lighting and community flag raisings will also be communicated to the public through 

the Town’s social media. 

If you have any questions regarding the above, please feel free to contact the undersigned. 

Yours sincerely, 

Emily Thomas-Hopkins 

Legislative Coordinator 

mailto:ethomashopkins@newmarket.ca


 
 

 
 

    
  
 

  
  

  
 
 

 

    

  

        
 

 

     

     

           

   

             

   

    

        

   

     

  

 

 

 

 

 

72 

Emily Thomas-Hopkins
Legislative Coordinator 
Town of Newmarket 
395 Mulock Drive 
P.O. Box 328 Station Main 
Newmarket, ON   L3Y 4X7 
Email: ethomashopkins@newmarket.ca 
Tel: 905-953-5300 x2210 
Fax:  905-953-5100 

February 13, 2024 

Sent to: casn.secretary@gmail.com 

Dear Canadian Amyloidosis Support Network: 

RE: Proclamation and Lighting Request – March 1 – 31, 2024 – Amyloidosis Awareness 
Month 

I am writing to advise that your proclamation and lighting request has been approved in 

accordance with the Council-approved Proclamation, Lighting Request and Community Flag 

Raising Policy, and the Town of Newmarket will proclaim March 1 – 31, 2024 as Amyloidosis 

Awareness Month. Approved proclamations, lighting requests, and community flag raisings will 

be listed on the Town’s website. Approved lighting and community flag raisings will also be 

communicated to the public through the Town’s social media. 

In addition, the Fred A. Lundy Bridge located on Water Street will be illuminated in red on March 

15, 2024 to recognize Amyloidosis Awareness Month. Please note that the lighting will occur 

from sunset until 11:00 PM. 

If you have any questions regarding the above, please feel free to contact the undersigned. 

Yours sincerely, 

Emily Thomas-Hopkins 

Legislative Coordinator 

mailto:casn.secretary@gmail.com
https://www.newmarket.ca/TownGovernment/Documents/Proclamation%20Lighting%20and%20Community%20Flag%20Raising%20Policy_V004.pdf
https://www.newmarket.ca/TownGovernment/Documents/Proclamation%20Lighting%20and%20Community%20Flag%20Raising%20Policy_V004.pdf
mailto:ethomashopkins@newmarket.ca


 
 

 
 

    
  
 

  
  

  
 
 

 

   

  

          
  

 

            

     

          

     

   

    

        

 

     

   

      

 

  

  

 

 

 

73 

Emily Thomas-Hopkins
Legislative Coordinator 
Town of Newmarket 
395 Mulock Drive 
P.O. Box 328 Station Main 
Newmarket, ON   L3Y 4X7 
Email: ethomashopkins@newmarket.ca 
Tel: 905-953-5300 x2210 
Fax:  905-953-5100 

February 16, 2024 

Sent to: tng@epilepsyyork.org 

Dear Tina Ng: 

RE: Proclamation and Lighting Request – Epilepsy Awareness Month and Purple Day – March 
2024, March 26, 2024 

I am writing to advise that your proclamation and lighting request has been approved in accordance with 

the Council-approved Proclamation, Lighting Request and Community Flag Raising Policy, and the Town 

of Newmarket will proclaim March 2024 as Epilepsy Awareness Month. Approved proclamations, lighting 

requests, and community flag raisings will be listed on the Town’s website. Approved lighting and 

community flag raisings will also be communicated to the public through the Town’s social media. 

In addition, the Fred A. Lundy Bridge located on Water Street will be illuminated in purple on March 26, 

2024 to recognize Purple Day. Please note that the lighting will occur from sunset until 11:00 PM. 

In addition, the community flag pole located at the Newmarket Municipal Offices (395 Mulock Drive) will 

fly your flag from March 20, 2024 to March 27, 2024 to recognize Epilepsy Awareness Month. Please 

note that the flag must be dropped off at the Town of Newmarket Operations Centre at 1275 Maple Hill 

Court by 4:00 PM on March 18, 2024 ATTN: Nick Evans. Alternatively, you can leave it in the drop off box 

at the front of the building after 4:00 PM. 

If you have any questions regarding the above, please feel free to contact the undersigned. 

Yours sincerely, 

Emily Thomas-Hopkins 

Legislative Coordinator 

mailto:tng@epilepsyyork.org
https://www.newmarket.ca/TownGovernment/Documents/Proclamation%20Lighting%20and%20Community%20Flag%20Raising%20Policy_V004.pdf
mailto:ethomashopkins@newmarket.ca


 

                        
    

          

 
  

 

 

  

 
       

 
  

   

      

 
    

 
 

  
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

74 

February 12, 2024 

Sent to: 

Dear Debra Hemig: 

RE: Lighting Request - March 6, 2024 – Global Lymphedema Day 

On behalf of the Town of Newmarket Council I am pleased to recognize Global 

Lymphedema Day by illuminating the Fred A. Lundy Bridge located on Water Street in 

turquoise on March 6, 2024 from sunset until 11:00 PM. 

Thank you for submitting your request and for your contributions to the community. 

Yours sincerely, 

John Taylor 
Mayor 

Office of the Mayor I Town of Newmarket I 395 Mulock Drive I PO Box 328 STN Main I Newmarket, 
ON I L3Y 4X7 

Phone. 905-953-5300 x.2000 I Fax. 905-953-5102 I Email: jtaylor@newmarket.ca 

mailto:jtaylor@newmarket.ca


 
 

 
 

    
  
 

  
  

  
 
 

 

    

  

       

 

          

      

 

             

   

     

  

 

 

 

 

 

75 

Emily Thomas-Hopkins
Legislative Coordinator 
Town of Newmarket 
395 Mulock Drive 
P.O. Box 328 Station Main 
Newmarket, ON   L3Y 4X7 
Email: ethomashopkins@newmarket.ca 
Tel: 905-953-5300 x2210 
Fax:  905-953-5100 

February 13, 2024 

Sent to: 

Dear Debra Hemig: 

RE: Lighting Request – March 6, 2024 – Global Lymphedema Day 

I am writing to advise that your lighting request has been approved in accordance with the Council-

approved Proclamation, Lighting Request and Community Flag Raising Policy, and the Fred A. 

Lundy Bridge located on Water Street will be illuminated in turquoise on March 6, 2024 to 

recognize Global Lymphedema Day. Please note that the lighting will occur from sunset until 

11:00 PM. 

If you have any questions regarding the above, please feel free to contact the undersigned. 

Yours sincerely, 

Emily Thomas-Hopkins 

Legislative Coordinator 

mailto:ethomashopkins@newmarket.ca

	Agenda
	1. Notice-EN-FINAL.pdf
	2. Resolution 2024-009 - AMO Policy Update - Social and Economic Prosperity Review - Jan 24 2024.pdf
	3. Reliable and Accessible Public Rail Transit - CN Rail Letter.pdf
	4. Supreme Court of Appeal in Sudbury v. Ontario (Ministry of Labour).pdf
	5. Council Decision - 2024 Ontario Budget Consultation.pdf
	5. 2024 Ontario Budget Consultation.pdf
	6. Ontario Launching “One Fare_ to Save Transit Riders $1,600.pdf
	7. Notice_of_Adoption_-_OP.docx MR.pdf
	8. C02 - 24 - Feb 5 - correspondence - return to combined conference.pdf
	9. RC24016 - Fire Apparatus.pdf
	10. RC24017 - Cemetery Committee Tay Township.pdf
	11. Letter - C56-2024 Amendment To the OHSA to Clarify the Definition of 'Employer'.pdf
	11. Support ResolutionAmendment to the OHSA to Clarify the Definition ofEmployerTown of Plympton-Wyoming (January 15, 2024).pdf
	12. 2024-02-14 Letter of Support - Conservation Officer reclassification.pdf
	12. Motion 23-371 Letter of Support - Conservation Officer Reclassification.pdf
	13. Feb 14 2024 - Letter to Premier re Support for the Decision of the Ontario Energy Board to End the Gas Pipeline Subsidy.pdf
	14. 2024 02 15  P-W Support Resolution - City of Sarnia - Carbon Tax.pdf
	15. 2024-02-14 Council Meeting - Extract - Item 15.1.4 - Provincial-Municipal Fiscal Service Delivery Review.pdf
	15. Member Motion - Attachments 1, 2 and 3 - Accessible.pdf
	16. Letter to Premier Doug Ford - Expanding the Life of Fire Apparatus.pdf
	17. Letter - Resolution - increase tax credits for volunteer firefighters - Feb 16, 2024.pdf
	18. Letter of Support- RE Prince Edward County- Fire Apparatus- CM.pdf
	19. Letter to Premier Doug Ford - support City of Greater Sudbury - Occupational Health and Safety Act.pdf
	20. Letter to Premier Doug Ford - support Twp of Conmee - Feb 16, 2024.pdf
	1. International Angelman Syndrome Day.pdf
	2. Rare Disease Day - Mayor's Letter_Redacted.pdf
	2. Rare Disease Day_Redacted.pdf
	3. March is Easter Seals Month - Mayor's Letter_Redacted.pdf
	3. March is Easter Seals Month_Redacted.pdf
	4. Amyloidosis Awareness Month.pdf
	5. Epilepsy Awareness Month and Purple Day.pdf
	6. Global Lymphedema Day - Mayor's Letter_Redacted.pdf
	6. Global Lymphedema Day_Redacted.pdf

